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Step Forwards...
Future Prosperity
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To Be The Preferred Global Supplier Of Viscose Rayon

Staple Fibre Through Superlative Product Quality And
Customer Service

(] (]
Mission
To Become Cost-Competitive Through:

- Technological Improvements & Developments
- Systems Perfection

To Enhance Capability to Produce Speciality VSF:
- Textile and Nonwoven Applications
- Birla Modal

To Improve Effectiveness of Environment Management
and Safety in Operations

Values

Integrity Honesty in Every Action
Commitment Deliver on the Promise

Passion Energized Action
Seamlessness Boundaryless in Letter and Spirit
Speed One Step Ahead Always
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Financial Highlights

(Unit : Million Baht / ¥idag : @13119)

2006 / 2549 2005 / 2548 2004 / 2547
gm:mqm?ﬁu / FINANCIAL STATUS
Aunineauiousu 4,726 4,203 3,853
Total Current Assets
Funindaan 11,393 10,061 8,744
Total Assets
AU UAEUN 465 372 421
Total Current Liabilities
AU 582 486 530
Total Liabilities
douresdiieviu 10,810 9,574 8,214
Shareholders’ Equity
NuETUEn 202 202 202
Paid Up Capital
NANTFANLILIN / OPERATING PERFORMANCE
selfannnsnedeaan 2,522 2,668 2,262
Export Sales
seldannnsanesan 5,341 5,325 4,994
Total Sales
selldisan 5,957 6,247 5,511
Total Revenues
nlsgqna 1,161 1,532 1,257
Net Profit
dayasiaifi (L) / PER SHARE DATA (BAHT)
Rutlung 1.10* 12 11
Dividend
mlssiatiu 5.76 7.60 6.23
Earnings
YAAMINLTTYT 53.62 47.49 40.75

Book Value

o o

wanewe ;: * MlszguaniznssunsiEnidedun 23 wgAaniou w.A. 2549 aueliiinsaneRuilunaludnvuas 1.10 v tnaazaeeyTRsenUssguandoydieu

uSui 30 NnF1AN WA, 2550

viEne Tiaeuudlassarduinaldanituyasiuss 10 vw duyaduas 1 um ildiddny quaansdeuiesnaimirauasissifiuyadi
wAa91149U 201,6000,000 L9 FerFne Iannfiumsaanzifewaauuasyaduineldiunsensasndiad Wedun 31 unsian w.a. 2549

Note: * The Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 23 November 2006 recommended to pay at this rate and will be proposed to the shareholder in the annual

general meeting for approval on 30 January 2007.

The company changed the par value of the ordinary share from Baht 10 per share to Baht 1 per share. The company’s issued and paid-up share

capital is Baht 201,600,000. The company registered the change in par value with the Ministry of Commerce on 31 January 2006.
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders
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Thailand’s economic growth of 4.5% this year, similar to
the last year, shows a large drop from the 6% that was averaged in
the year 2002-2004 period. This is largely attributed to depressed
domestic demand, as the Thai economy adjusted to high energy
prices, rising interest rates and political uncertainties. Only
significantly stronger growth in exports, resulting from faster
global growth in 2006, averted further reduction in the growth
of real GDP. The real GDP growth in 2007 is projected to be
around 4.6% as domestic demand recovers with lower oil prices,
but the decline in foreign demand and supply-side constraints limit
further growth.

World oil prices in 2006 are expected to average around
US$ 65 per barrel, which represents 22% increase from the
previous year's level. Looking forward, oil prices are expected to
gradually decline to US$ 60 in 2007 and to US$ 56 in 2008.
Despite the decline in oil prices, the global economy (in terms of
real GDP Growth) in 2007 is expected to slow down to 3.3% from a
level of 3.9% in 2006.

The year 2006 was an eventful year for the company.

e The fourth production line with 85-TPD normal VRSF capacity
and capable of producing 40-TPD modal fibre is under final
stages of erection & commissioning. This line is scheduled for
commercial production by January 2007, at a total capital
expenditure of Baht 940 Million.

e The long gestation Birla Lao Pulp & Plantations, with a 30%
stake from Thai Rayon is in process of land preparation for
plantation & setting up of plant nursery. This project will provide
a long-term raw material resource to the company.

e The 30,000 TPA Birla Jingwei Chinese JV has come into being
with 19.5% stake from the company at Baht 342 Million. Aditya
Birla Group, including the company, has a controlling stake of
70%.
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e The state-of-the-art 20,000 TPA Gas based (382 project at SIL
Industrial Park at Saraburi has started taking off with purchase
of land and ordering of technology & plant supply. The total
capital expenditure shall be Baht 656 Million and project to be in
operation by March 2008.

e Your directors have also approved a capital expenditure plan
for Baht 865 Million to install 5" Line of 85 TPD VSF production
increase and up gradation of existing production & environment
facilities etc. The time schedule for this expenditure is in March
2008.

The second half of 2006 was a good period for the entire
textile value chain with strong demand and good prices for our
fibre but because of lackluster realizations in the first half and
continuing appreciation of Baht, the average VRSF realization
during the year was lower by 1.8% from previous year while the
production and sales volume during the same period were higher
by 1.8% and 3.2% respectively. Oil price increase also pushed up
the prices of raw materials and logistic costs.

This year, the company recorded net profit of Baht 1,162
Million, a decrease of 24% over 2005. The earning from operating
activities in 2006 was marginally lower by 11% at Baht 612 Million
as compared to Baht 686 Million in 2005, while the share of profit
from investments accounted for under equity method decreased
sharply by 43% from Baht 718 Million in 2005 to Baht 407 Million in
2006.

Considering lower cash flow generation from the earnings
this year and higher funds requirements for capacity expansions,
the Board of Directors recommends a dividend of Baht 1.10 per
share for the year ending 30 September 2006.

The Board of Directors would like to extend their
appreciation to all the employees of the company for the excellent
performance in adverse market conditions and thank them for their
sincere efforts.

The Board of Directors and Management of the company
would like to thank all the shareholders for their continued support

On behalf of the Board of Directors

.
/
(§PRhasmt =

P.M. Bajaj
President and Director
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Major Changes and Other Events
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e[16 March 2006] Signed Concession Agreement with

Government of Lao PDR

The company, along with overseas group companies established

a company in the Lao PDR, “Birla Lao Pulp & Plantations Ltd.”

in which Thai Rayon has an equity participation of 30%. On 16

March 2006, the company signed the concession agreement for

development of plantation and pulp plant project with the

Government of the Lao PDR represented by the Committee for

Planning and Investment (CPI) for the following details :

1) The company, along with the other group companies
in India and Indonesia, signed the agreement to secure total
50,400 hectares of land for 75 years lease to develop
eucalyptus plantations and pulp plant.

2) The project will be implemented in two phases:

2.1 The 1* phase will be completed in 7 years. The total
investment of this phase will be USD 50 Million to be
funded by equity capital of USD 25 Million, in which the
company’s stake will be 30% or USD 7.5 Million
(or equivalent Baht 300 Million) and the balance will be
from borrowing.

2.2 Pulp plant construction will be started in the sixth year for
production of 200,000 MT of dissolving grade wood
pulp, mainly to be used by the shareholders in
production of viscose rayon staple fibre. This is subject
to satisfactory development of plantation.

e [15 August 2006] Passed following Board Resolutions

The Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 15 August 2006 passed

the resolutions as follows:

1) Approved an additional investment of Canadian Dollars 3.2
Million (approx. Baht 108 Million) in AV Cell Inc. - the pulp mill
in Canada, for subscription of newly issued 19,200 shares.
The total shareholding of the company will increase from
16.67% to 19% and overall shareholding of Aditya Birla
Group companies in India, Indonesia and Thailand shall
be increased from 50% to 75%. AV Cell Inc. is producing
dissolving grade wood pulp, which is vital raw material for
the company.

2) Approved an additional investment of Canadian Dollars 1.8
Million (approx. Baht 59 Million paid in October 2006) in AV
Nackawic Inc. - the pulp mill in Canada, by purchasing 9%
additional shares i.e. from 10% to 19% and the overall
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shareholding of Aditya Birla Group companies in India,
Indonesia and Thailand remains 75%. AV Nackawic Inc. was
acquired in 2005, which produces paper grade pulp and
being converted to produce dissolving grade wood pulp,
which is vital raw material for the company.
3) Approved capital expenditure of Baht 656 Million to establish
a new factory to produce 20,000 tons of Carbon di Sulphide
(CSZ) at SIL Industrial Park in Saraburi. This facility will help
the company to secure its requirement of CSz, one of the
important raw material for its expansion and existing
production. The new factory will be able to use new process
technology using natural gas instead of Charcoal.
The project is expected to complete by March 2008.
o [3 September 2006] Signed JV Agreement for Birla Jingwei Fibre
Co. Ltd, Hubei.
On 3 September 2006, the company signed the Joint Venture
Agreement to invest in Birla Jingwei Fibres Co.,Ltd., newly
formed company in China to acquire the assets of a viscose
staple fibre plant of 30,000 tons/year capacity. The company
along with Aditya Birla Group companies in India and Indonesia
hold 70% shares whereas Chinese Group holds 30%. Total
investment in joint venture is RMB 71.955 Million (or equivalent of
Baht 342 Million) fully paid in October 2006. The investment is to
expand in viscose staple fibre business & to have company’s
presense in China market. Birla Jingwei Fibres Co.,Ltd. is poised
to expand its current production capacity to 60,000 tons per
annum by end of December 2007.

Other Events

© [30 January 2006] The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
held on 30 January 2006 approved the appointment of
Mr. P.M. Bajaj, President of the company, as a new director
effective from 31 January 2006.

o [1 February 2006] The company changed the par value of the
ordinary share from Baht 10 per share to Baht 1 per share. The
company’s issued and paid-up share capital is Baht
201,600,000. The company registered the change in par value
with the Department of Business Development, Ministry of
Commerce on 31 January 2006.

e [16 February 2006] On 16 February 2006, the company paid the
dividend to shareholders of Baht 12 per share for the year ended
30 September 2005. The dividend amounting to Baht 241.92
Million was paid out of unappropriated retained earnings.

e [15 August 2006] Mr. Prachitr Yossundara resigned as the
Chairman of the Board of Directors on health reason.
The Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 15 August 2006
nominated Mr. K.M. Birla, the existing director to be the Chairman
effective from 1 October 2006.

e [23 November 2006] The Board of Directors’ Meeting held on
23 November 2006 proposed a dividend payment of Baht 1.10
per share, amounting to Baht 221.76 Million and it will be paid on
14 February 2007, after approval of shareholders.
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The company is aware of the importance and is fully
committed to the principles of good corporate governance that
comprises adherence to rightful response to customer and
shareholder needs, transparency, responsibility towards duties
and operations, justice, vision and ethics. It strives to instill
these principles for day to day use by the Board of Directors,
Management and staff in order to be a foundation to improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of company activities, treat all
stakeholders fairly, create confidence, allow the company to
operate competitively, with transparency and fairness, sustain
performance and importantly, to add value for shareholders,
customers, investors and all parties involved.

The company is committed to implement the principles
and guidelines of the 15-good corporate governance principles of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand. It is responsible to all
stakeholders, the environment, society and the nation and adheres
to following principles;

1. Rights and equitable treatment of shareholders and
various groups of stakeholders
Structure, roles, duties and independence of Directors
Information, disclosure and transparency
Internal control and risk management

Code of conduct

o o s w N

Long-term value creation of stakeholders

The company has set up a team of Board members and
Management to professionally run the company. The Board of
directors, in their supervisory role, ensures that the company’s
business is conducted in a transparent manner, subject to auditing
and fair to all parties concerned. The Board also ensures that the
results of the operations are monitored closely and necessary
follow-up of results, corrections and adjustments are made for the

long term sustainable and profitable operations of the company.
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Thai Rayon’s corporate governance policy states clearly
that the Board of Directors give top priority to the rights and
equality of shareholders. The company’s shareholders equally
enjoy their basic rights: namely, the rights to receive share
certificate and transfer shares and the right to access adequate
and complete information in a timely manner for decision-making
purpose. In addition, the Board of Directors also insists that
shareholders have a right to attend and vote at a shareholders’
meeting, to amend the company’s major policies and that they are
entitled to elect and remove directors, approve the auditor’s
appointment and their fees.

The Board of Directors also facilitates shareholders
attending the shareholders’ meeting by sending adequate
information in time for the meeting, urging shareholders to attend
the meeting and exercise their rights or appointing a person or any
independent director to vote on his/her behalf as a proxy if one
can't attend the meeting. In addition, shareholders are allowed to
express their viewpoints, request explanation or ask question in the

meeting.

The company is eager to support a collaboration between
itself, all stakeholders and other relevant parties such as staff,
customers, suppliers, creditors, government agencies, Thai
Rayon’s surrounding communities and the society in general. The
company strives to ensure all stakeholders that their rights will be
protected and they will be well treated. That's one reason why the
company opts to review the practices of directors, executives and
staff in its Code of Conduct in the following major topics: conflict of
interest, responsibility to shareholders and staff policy and how to
treat staff, customers, supplier, creditor and the society in general.
Directors, Executives and Staff are to abide by, understand and
strictly comply with these practices guidelines.

In addition, Thai Rayon also requires that the company’s
operation information be reported to stakeholders and other parties
in its annual report. The communication channel must be provided
to stakeholders and relevant parties to voice their opinions and file
grievance system into three groups — customers, shareholders and
investors & staff, respectively.

To achieve this mission, the company places importance
on the rights of stakeholders and has incorporated this issue as
part of the company’s strategic plans:

Customers : Since customer’s satisfaction is crucial to the
company’s business success, Thai Rayon intends to find ways and
means to effectively respond to customer’s needs where it
seriously commits to do whatever promised to customers. Plans
are drafted and responsible persons are entrusted for compliance
control, delivering products with quality and price previously
agreed and offering advice on how to use the product effectively.
In case the product can't be delivered, the company will discuss
with customers to find the best solution possible to reduce

potential impact.
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Suppliers and/or Creditors : Thai Rayon has a policy to
treat them equally and fairly by taking into consideration its
maximum benefit and on the basis that both parties receive fair
returns. The company will do everything to avoid a situation that
may lead to a conflict of interest and to comply with the agreement,
gives accurate and factual information and reports as well as
negotiates and find solutions based on business relations.

Staff: The company realizes the importance of human
resource development, appropriate compensation as well as
support of employee participation and accordingly

e Formulates annual plans for training and developing
employees

e Provides training courses and seminars to upgrade their
skills and knowledge

e Encourages employee participation e.g. activities to
solicited staff opinions and support of families of staff by way of
hospitalization compensation and other social welfare activities

Society : The company takes its responsibility towards
society seriously e.g. regularly supports Government & Community
welfare projects and gives donations for social welfare activities
along with keeping very cordial relations with community. It sets
aside a budget to implement this policy. It also actively creates a
social responsibility awareness among staff so that the company
remains a good corporate citizen for the society in the year to

come.

The company held annual general meeting of the
shareholders on 30 January 2006. The Board of Directors and
President of the company (by invitation) attend meeting. The Board
of Directors has a policy to urge shareholders to participate in a
decision-making process and make sure that they receive
complete and adequate information at least seven business days
prior to the meeting date. The notice of the meeting along with the
brief financial statement is also published in leading Thai daily
newspaer, for at least 3 consecutive days, before the meeting
date. Annual Report and minutes both in Thai & English language
are sent well in advance. Chairman of the meeting allows all
shareholders to inquire about the company’s operations and
appoint a proxy to exercise their votes. He also supports
shareholders to express opinions and provides them an
opportunity to seek explanations regarding the company’s

operations.

The Board of Directors are involved in setting up of
the company’s vision, mission, objectives, as well as guiding
management through strategic plans and approved budgets so as
to achieve maximum efficiency and overall effectiveness of the
organization and there by adding value to shareholders’ equity.

The company has specified the operational and lawful
duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors, Audit
Committee, management, and stipulates the scope and financial

and administrative procedures for each area of activity.
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The strategic plan consisting of objectives, goals and
annual budget is presented to the Board of Directors every year

and is approved by them.

The Board of Directors takes the following into careful
consideration so as to prevent any conflict of interests:

e Strict adherence to rules and regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, Company’s Articles of Association, and
relevant laws, including the disclosure of related party transaction.

e Prevention of the use of insider information by
Management or involved parties for their personal benefit. All
Directors and the management team are prohibited from trading in
the company’s shares before the release of its financial results to
the public. All directors and management team is required to
inform their transactions in company’s shares to company
secretary in every Board's meeting and in case volume exceeds
5%, same is required to be informed to the SEC on the next
business day.

e Directors are not permitted to vote or decide on those

issues where they may be personally involved.

The company has adopted a revised written code of
business ethics as a guide to its administration and operation of
Management and the key employees. The company’s business
ethics ‘Values we value’, are popularly known in the company,
which are built on the principles of Integrity, Commitment, Passion,
Seamlessness and Speed. A booklet was circulated to each and
every employee and workshops were conducted to ensure greater

awareness and adherence to the company values.

The Board of Directors makes sure that the number of
directors is suitable to the size of the company’s operation. At
present, the Board of Directors has 10 members, comprises of 9
non-executives directors and 1 executive director. The Board
consists of 3 independent directors who are also members of the

Audit Committee.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall not hold any
management position within the company. He shall not be the
President or Executives Director of the company nor be related to
anyone on the management. The company has also defined the
duties of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee and operational
duties of the management for efficient and smooth working of the

company.
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The remuneration of board members is appropriate,
transparent and in accordance with the Company Articles of
Association and subject to the approval of the meeting of
shareholders.

The company has fully set out the remuneration of the
Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Management,
appropriate to their position and responsibilities. Details of the
remuneration for Directors and management are shown in a

seperate section of this report.

The Board of Directors have annual schedule of the
meetings once in 3 months. There must be a clear meeting
agenda both for acknowledgement and for consideration at each
meeting. In addition, the meeting’s supporting documents must be
completed and adequate for sending to the Board of Directors as
least 7 days in advance so that the Board of Directors will have
enough time to study the information before attending the meeting.
Each meeting will last approximately 2-3 hours. In the meeting, all
directors are allowed to voice their opinions openly where
Chairman of the meeting will summarize the opinions and points of
discussion at the meeting. In case a director has a material interest
in an issue considered by the Board at the moment, he/she must
leave the meeting, which the matter is considered.

A minute of meeting is made in writing and, after approved
by the subsequent meeting, is certified by the Chairman of the
meeting. The company secretary keeps the relevant papers and
minutes of these meetings and is made available to the relevant

parties for inspection.
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In year 2006, the Board of Directors convened 5 meeting.

Records of meeting attendance of individual directors are as

follows.
msLansa8UsEaa / Meeting Attendance
ngz1ng MTENLAL 598
Ordinary Agenda Special Agenda Total
4 1 5/5
- - 0/5
- - 0/5
- - 0/5
3 1 4/5
4 1 5/5
4 1 5/5
4 1 5/5
- - 0/5
2 1 3/5
3 - 3/3
Note:

Resigned as a director & Chairman of the Board with effect from 30
September 2006

Appointed as Chairman of the Board effective from 1 October 2006, Foreign
director

Foreign director

*** Appointed as a new director effective from 31 January 2006

wdek

The Board of Directors of the company have appointed 3
independent directors as members of audit committee on 30
January 2006 with tenure of three years. The meeting of the
shareholders approved the re-appointment upon completion of the
existing tenure. In 2006, Audit Committees met four times. Agenda
was sent to the committee members 7 days in advance. The audit
committee considered various issues as per their scope set by the
Board. A separate report of the Audit Committee to shareholders is

also published in this annual report.

The company places utmost importance on the system of
control for optimal performance and transparency of operations, to
reduce risk and to prevent or reduce loss that may occur in its
operations. This is achieved by setting up working rules, authority
& delegation guidelines, ISO work & quality procedures and
monthly compliance with day-to-day monitoring by top
management with reports to Audit Committee members for their
review in meetings. The above framework helps to achieve
independent controls and ensure that the main operations and
important financial activities of the company are conducted

according to the rules and regulations set forth.
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The details of all related party transactions are disclosed
under independent auditor's notes to financial statements section
(note no. 7) in addition to the details described under chapter
“Transactions with Related Parties”.

The Audit Committee reviews all the related party
transactions and is of the opinion that these transactions are

conducted on an arm - length basis and at fair market value.

The Board of Directors are well aware of the importance of
the relationship with investors in connection with providing them
both financial and non-financial information that is accurate,
complete, transparent and comprehensive. The information is
provided through SET which is important to investors,
shareholders, analysts and the public to aid them in making the
right choices. The company has assigned the Company Secretary
to liaise and serve to answer inquiries from shareholders
& investors. For information, corporate secretary can be contacted
on Tel. 0-2253-6745-54 (ext.2250) or at e-mail address:

mayuree@thairayon.com and/or suwanna@thairayon.com.
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The company’s management comprises of the Board of

Directors, Audit Committee and Management Team.

1. Mr. Prachitr Yossundara®  Chairman of the Board of Directors

2. Mr. KM. Birla* Director

3. Mrs. Rajshree Birla Director

4. Mrs. Neerja Birla Director

5. Mr. S.S.Mahansaria Independent Director and Chairman
of the Audit Committee

6. Mr. Vinai Sachdev Independent Director and member
of the Audit Committee

7. Mr. Amolat Thakral Director

8. Mrs. Rachani Kajiji Director

9. Mr. Ramakant Rathi Independent Director and member

of the Audit Committee
10. Mr. Shailendra Kumar Jain Director
11. Mr. P.M. Bajaj

Note:

* The Board of Directors Meeting held on 15 August 2006 passed the
resolution appointing Mr. K.M. Birla as the new Chairman of the Board
of Directors effective from 1 October 2006 due to the resignation of
Mr. Prachitr Yossundara on health reasons.

Mrs. Mayuree Na Rangsilpa is company secretary

Director

The company has authorized any two directors, signing

jointly with company’s seal, to execute the company documents.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1. To perform duties in accordance with the Memorandum,
Articles of Association and the resolutions of the Shareholders’
Meeting.

2. To be responsible for setting up the company’s policy and
direction and monitoring / supervising the efficient
implementation of the policy/objectives by the management.

3. To be responsible for appointing the Audit Committee.

4. To convene meeting of shareholders and Directors from time

to time.
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1. Mr. S.S.Mahansaria
2. Mr. Vinai Sachdev
3. Mr. Ramakant Rathi

The Board of Directors passed the resolution to appoint

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Audit Committee

the Audit Committee on 30 January 2006 for a fresh term of

three years.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

1. Ensure that the financial statements of the company are
correct, sufficient and reliable.

2. Ensure that the company has adequate and effective internal
control systems.

3. Consider, select and nominate the appointment of the
company’s external auditors.

4. Ensure that the company abides by all the relevant regulations
and laws.

5. Ensure that the company avoids activities that may lead to
conflicts of interest.

6. Consider other matters as determined by the Board of
Directors.

7. Produce an Audit Committee report, sighed by the Chairman of
the Audit Committee, and to be disclosed in the company’s
annual report.

8. Report an Audit Committee performance statement to the
company’s Board of Directors every quarter & at least 4 times a

year.

The management has performed duties in accordance
with the company’s objective and taken responsibility of
company’s operations besides meeting various laws of land,
conditions, rules and regulations. It is responsible to Board of

Directors and comprises of following personned:-

1. Mr. P.M. Bajaj President

2. Mr. Vijesh Kapoor Senior Vice President

3. Mr.N.K. Jain Vice President - Production
4. Mr. Sanjay Mahajan Vice President - Commercial
5. Mr. Sanjay Kumar Verma Vice President - Marketing
6. Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Kaul Assistant Vice President -

Engineering
7. Mr. Ram Gopal Agrawal Assistant Vice President-Process
& Development
8. Mr. Mukesh Chandra Jain Assistant Vice President-
Commercial
9. Mr. Pramote Pattanamongkol General Manager - HR &

Administration
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The Board of Directors has defined the independence of
directors in accordance with the regulations of the SEC and the
SET as follow:

1. A person who holds no more than 0.5% of paid-up capital of
the company or conflict of juristic person. (including related
person under Section 258 of Securities Laws).

2. Being a non-executive director in the management of the
company and not being an employee, staff or consultant
regularly receiving monthly salary from the company including
not being consultant of auditor, or other consultant or the
authorized person of the company or conflict of related person,
including not having benefits or interests in such a manner.

3. Without any business connection such as customers,
stakeholders, creditor/debtor including being not having direct
or indirect benefits or interests either in finance or in the
management of the company or conflict of juristic person will
not affect his performance and opinion as an independent
director.

4. Being director who is neither related nor a closed relative to the
company’s executive, major shareholders or conflict of juristic
person including not appointed as representative to main

interests of the company’s directors and major shareholder.

Appointment of Directors

1. The shareholders appoint directors of the company.

2. The company must have a minimum of 5 and can have a
maximum of 17 directors. Not less than one half of all the
directors shall be resident of the Kingdom.

3. The appointment of Directors is made by a majority vote of the
shareholders’ meeting in accordance with the following
conditions and procedures:

3.1 One shareholder shall have one vote for each share.

3.2 Each shareholder shall exercise all the votes he has under
(1) above, to appoint the nominated persons to be
Directors on a person-by-person basis, provided that he
cannot divide his votes to any person to any extent.

3.3 Person receiving the highest votes is elected to be
Director first, followed by second highest, and so on, till all
the vacancies are filled. If there is a tie for the last vacancy
and if this exceeds the said number of Directors, the

presiding Chairman shall have an additional casting vote.
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ANMALILNY / Details of Remuneration

Remuneration

1. Remuneration in cash of Board members for the year 2006
& 2005 by way of meeting allowance, pension, etc., was
Baht 5,667,342 as per below details.

2549 (u1n) / 2006 (Baht) 2548 (U1n) / 2005 (Baht)

1. Andelszgunniznssuniatimm 750,000 560,000
Meeting Allowance to BOD

2. Aududsvguaniznssunisasadey 70,000 80,000
Meeting Allowance to Audit Committee

3. AReULNULIZaIUNIINNNg 1,000,000 1,000,000
Chairman’s Remuneration

4. thwmianssunisuazanldaneau 3,847,342 4,628,782
Pension to Ex Executive Director & reimbursement of expenses

ANNBLILNUTIN 5,667,342 6,268,782

Total Remuneration

ANMALWNUNIINANTLATU N NN AN S M TLAT WIS
warANFLRRTey warlifunisewiRanfilszgudDeiu

o

2. AmeuunusniidudaRueecdiiunsreizEiny dudad

AMUIUHLFING 2549 (L)

No. of Management 2006 (Baht)

The Directors remuneration is appropriate to their position
and responsibilities and same has been approved in shareholders
meeting.

2. Remuneration in cash for the company’s management is
as follows.

AMUIUHLFUNS 2548 (L)

No. of Management 2005 (Baht)

e " 32,680,436

Total

14 38,046,004
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SIEUMUMSTIDASOLHUYOLNSSUMSIIAzWUSMS Shareholding Report of Directors and
(ru dun 30 AUUNEU W.F. 2549) Management as of 30 September 2006
. 'si"mfauﬁ'umﬁ’m / No. of common shares

%2 / Name )
2549 / 2006 2548 / 2005 VAN (am) / Increase/decrease

1. welsrang eAgung 24,000 24,000 -
Mr. Prachitr Yossundara

2. WEnu1? WA lwedan - - -
Mr. K.M. Birla

3. WNIITNET Wesan - - -
Mrs. Rajshree Birla

4. wadlsan waesan - - -
Mrs. Neerja Birla

5 weladu quaed indunFe 2,050 2,050 -
Mr. S.S.Mahansaria

6. wenile dalmn 502,150 502,150 -
Mr. Vinai Sachdev

7. waeludn inaa - - -
Mr. Amolat Thakral

8. wwkadl Anaa 4,671,690 4,671,690 -

Mrs. Rachani Kajiji

9. WEIWIAIUA 3% - B B
Mr. Ramakant Rathi

10. mﬂ'l,maumw N7 LAY - - -
Mr. Shailendra Kumar Jain

1. wefuNna unana - - -
Mr. P.M. Bajaj

12, wiefag Ny - - -
Mr. Vijesh Kapoor

13, UIEULIUAT [BENMERRN - - -
Mr. N.K. Jain

14, WAL NNAY - B B
Mr. Sanjay Mahajan

15, wieguiagd nu17 e - - -
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Verma

= &
16, WLEIUAN N7 ABRA - - -
Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Kaul

17. w1 Intha annaia - - -
Mr. Ram Gopal Agrawal

18, WIEYAT FUATT LAY - - -
Mr. Mukesh Chandra Jain

19, Wi lund Amunsna - - _
Mr. Pramote Pattanamongkol

v

o A o o o . Aoy aa o
UNEILNR : muquuumLmmu”l,mmmmquuuwnﬂ‘[mﬂ@mmaLm:ummﬂﬂuuﬁqumqumﬂ

—— q

Note : The number of shares shown above included the shares held by spouse and minor children.
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Thai Rayon sees itself as part of a broader community and
has concentrated its corporate citizenship efforts to achieve
optimum impact on education, health, culture and community

development initiatives in the surrounding villages.

A. Sustainable Education
Children are the future of any Nation and supporting and
investing in their Education is equivalent to securing the future of
the Country. In 2006, Thai Rayon has spent Baht 850,000 in
promoting sustainable education of young children in Angthong
Province: During 2006, Thai Rayon -
e Distributed Scholarships worth Baht 300,000 to the students
in Angthong Province.
e Supported daily lunch scheme in 8 schools by donating rice
worth Baht 250,000.
e Donated books and sports equipment to 8 orphanage
temple school worth Baht 100,000.
e Renovated kindergarten rooms, toilet and play ground of 8
temple schools worth Baht 200,000.

B. Sports & Health

Thai Rayon promotes a healthy lifestyle and general well
being and in this endeavor spent Baht 115,500 in 2006 to promote
Sports and Health related activities in surrounding schools and
local community. During 2006, Thai Rayon -

e Organized a walk rally of employees and people from the
surrounding community on the occasion of HM The King &
Queen’s Birthday incurring a cost of Baht 20,000.

e Donated Baht 40,000 worth of sporting equipment to
8 schools on the occasion of National Children Day.

e Distributed T-Shirts & Sport Equipment worth Baht 10,000 to
Basketball Club of Anthong Province.

e Distributed medicines worth Baht 45,500 to Schools,
Temple and Tambol Hygiene Office.
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C. Arts and Culture
Thailand has a glorious history and cultural heritage and Thai
Rayon has always felt proud to be a part of the Thai Culture. During
2006, Thai Rayon spent more than Baht 290,000 and actively
participated in the following local religious and cultural activities,
namely,
e Participated in Kra-thin and Pha-Pa ceremonies in 9
temples donating Baht 150,000.
e Offered food to elderly people on Songkran Day and spent
Baht 120,000
o Offered Buddhist Candle at 10 Temples on Buddhist Lent
Day worth Baht 20,000.
e Participated in prayers and candle lighting ceremonies in
nearby temples and offered food to monks.
e Invited famous Buddhist monks for preaching and sermons,

periodically.

D. Social and Community Development
Thai Rayon has always strived to develop harmonious
relationship with the surrounding community. In this regard it has
always tried to supplement the local governmental efforts
whenever the opportunity arose. During 2006, Thai Rayon spent
Baht 665,000 and support by way of :
e Offered food packets & drinking water bottles to people
affected with floods near factory area incurring a cost of
Baht 600,000.
e Installed two big PVC tanks for drinking water to Tambol
Posa Council during floods, spending Baht 15,000.
e Participated in Anti-Drug Campaigns Project ‘To Be Number
One’ of Angthong Province, organized by the Governor of
Angthong province and Donated Baht 50,000 to Princess

Ubolratrachakany Siriwathanapanavadi.
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The company has an exhaustive preventive and predictive
maintenance system (TPM, Six Sigma) to ensure good health of all
its manufacturing equipments. The company is highly committed to
safety. Besides a very high level of safety consciousness amongst
all employees and rigorous training and investment in all the
necessary safety equipment, the company conducts mock drills,
emergency plan simulation etc. to ensure highest standard of
alertness. The company has also obtained ISO 14000
accreditation to have a proper documented environment

management system and practices.

e The company has made substantial investments in
strengthening its Effluent Treatment Plant (ETP) to meet and
surpass all the standards prescribed by the Ministry of Industry.
During the year, the company, on its own, carried out Environment
Impact Assessment (EIA) study from an outside consultant and
based on the consultant’s report, is taking actions to strengthen the

system.

e Charcoal is the key raw material in the manufacture
of Carbon Di Sulphide (CSZ), a key ingredient in the manufacture
of VRSF. To reinforce its green credentials, the company is setting
up a Natural gas based CS2 production facility at an investment of
Baht 656 Million to ensure steady supply of CSZ, while
discontinuing the use of environmentally degrading wood

charcoal.

25



ANUNUMISUS:NOUSSND
Nature of Business

139 Inesgay andn (Nu1Tu) L&5unneiesaie
Fuil 13 NNAWUE WA, 2517 wazEurinnsndndaonndadisde
Ui 14 fueneu wa. 2519 13Eme LEdnaansideuly
aanaNEWELLT WA, 2527 Branrndanansngn 10,000 f
et w.. 2519 flaqiituthdne Amasnisudnduledsshing
138191 (Viscose Rayon Staple Fibre) fi4 80,000 siusall uaz
Ananiusmeealfiundelnfaudams 60,000 fusall

EEE [;Tq@ﬁuﬁllmniﬁw%mzm vwilefingn 200 13
TraeulfFunnsiusesninsgIugnaIunesa 1ISO 9002 uay 1SO
14001 wanaNiiEl3usneda TPM Excellence Award a1 JIPM
Uszmpdiuandae

Wuledsehingisney wananaziduingaudrdnydmiv
grannssuAmeuda lugnawnssuiilailidene (ueuqii) A3
AaiuFinaslduaniy indelnfendamndadunanin
wamﬂﬁﬁLﬂuimqﬁuﬁ'm"ﬁﬁmlu@m@ﬁuﬂiiumd*ﬁﬂﬂ@ﬂ NTHARA
nszan nswanEels uazdme

nanAnsiduledssingdaesuiing dszunudenas 50
deeanlaemslifandn 20 Uszmevialan nelirsesmungnisdn
“Birla Cellulose” mummgmﬁlLimqmmmqﬂﬁﬂumgmﬂ
anigeuidni Windln glsd nafl wAwIAN Basniea saaATIAY
s AdUTlud aulailide Unfian1u uazrddenn

L3N mfﬂumumﬁiﬂmmﬁmmi‘%ﬂu@mmumm%qm
Lmﬂu@mmumimmﬂ‘ﬁﬁqm Tngvinisuandulalsshing
fifAnunaNMANaRILA 0.9 4 5.5 Denier ulefiTanue

v
o '

FOWA 32 a.a. D9 120 a3, 5¥AUAINLI2919989N 5 HaNd B
4’ =< 2 =< a o ﬂ‘d‘ a

Ny wasfiuuas sanldfsndndusMlsAainaasiunas
uandnaTd i ilesiulmeuuaiiive LazAua1an IHART 4
FanAmaaasaTasansagluanedl W3Evy Adnanwluniswan
@ulelunna Faduduledanannmunings ndnfumaianime

= o o @ Ay ) ,
AAr waznauilunfasnisiunaiaiuadaunn

U39 T 3 aM8n1sRARTasN i FIHERTadY 80,000
fusiell wazananiTuand 4 ﬂ°ﬁﬁmgﬂi1u°ﬁw°ummsﬁmr;"\m,m
NANBILAIEIENT BaA1ATIATEINNTNARDIALLATIdNTIA Y
{FOUANTIAN W.A. 2550 11 4 AnennsHARAIifNdsnnsHARIeNTE
Wuladseingisaausaniudszunns 110,000 Ausiel lunsyuou
naudmduledssirfenauazlfindelanandamndunandn
waesld Tull w.a. 2549 13wy Laldndsnnsnaniiedesay 99
wazidnsninuansaanaelnfendamniesas 77

26

Thai Rayon Public Company Limited was incorporated on
13 February 1974 and it began commercial production on
14 September 1976. The company obtained Stock Exchange
Listing in 1984. Starting with a capacity of less than 10,000 TPA in
1976, Thai Rayon now has the capacity to produce 80,000 TPA of
Viscose Rayon Staple Fibre (VRSF) and 60,000 TPA of Anhydrous
Sodium Sulphate as a by-product.

Located on the banks of Chao Praya river in Angthong
and spread over 200 Rai of land, the manufacturing facility is ISO
9002 and ISO 14001 accredited. It has also been awarded the
prestigious TPM Excellence Award by JIPM, Japan.

VRSF is a vital raw material for woven textile products
and is now also increasingly being used in non-woven
applications. The by-product Anhydrous Sodium Sulphate
finds primary applications in detergent, glass, wood pulp
manufacturing & textile industries.

Approximately half of Thai Rayon’s VRSF throughput is
directly exported to more than 20 countries worldwide. The ‘Birla
Cellulose’ brand of VRSF product meets the stringent quality
expectations of customers in USA, Mexico, Europe, Turkey,
Canada, Israel, Australia, South Korea, Philippines, Indonesia,
Pakistan and Sri Lanka.

Thai Rayon caters to the demands of both Textile and
Non-Woven applications, producing VRSF varieties in the range of
0.9 to 5.5 Denier, Staple Length in the range of 32 mm to 120 mm,
Lustre in Bright Bleach, Semi Dull or Full Dull with Chlorine-free
and Anti-Bacterial properties. With the commissioning of its 4"
production line, Thai Rayon will also acquire the capability to make
Modal Fibre, for high-end specialty woven knitted applications.

Thai Rayon has three production lines with a combined
annual capacity of 80,000 tons and a 4" production line is in
advanced stage of erection and commissioning and is expected to
be commissioned in January 2007. Combined capacity of all 4
lines will be about 110,000 tons/ year of normal VRSF. During
production of VRSF, Anhydrous Sodium Sulphate is recovered as
a by-product from process. In 2006, VRSF capacity utilization
reached to 99% while Anhydrous Sodium Sulphate recovery
was 77%.
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Thai Rayon also manufactures Carbon di Sulphide and Sulphuric
Acid, which is 100% captively consumed during the manufacturing
of VRSF.
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241 198

268 171

718 364
6,247 5,511

The company has continuously ploughed back its profits
into strategic investments — for backward as well as for forward
integration. During the year, the company invested Baht 126 Million
in two ventures in field of wood pulp manufacturing for securing
economic availability of dissolving grade wood pulp in the long
term. This year, the company received Baht 63 Million as dividend
from its investments, as against Baht 131 Million in the previous
year. Besides the financial returns, the company obtains significant

strategic advantage through its investments.
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The raw materials form a very significant portion of the cost
structure of the company. The details of key raw materials and
issues relating to the same are as follows:

Dissolving Wood Pulp : This Rayon grade wood pulp is
100% imported, mainly from South Africa and Canada (our affiliate
company). This product is characterized by volatile swings in price
and limited supply sources. As a result, the seller has a stronger
negotiating leverage. After remaining soft during the beginning of
the year, the prices have firmed up quite a bit in the last quarter of
2006. The price trend of dissolving grade wood pulp broadly
mirrors the trend of the paper grade pulp price, but the absolute
price levels are influenced by respective demand and supply

situation only.

Caustic Soda : This product is partly sourced from domestic
market and rest is imported. With increasing local demand without
a corresponding capacity addition, the availability from domestic
sources is getting reduced. Accordingly, the company has been
strengthening its import logistics to handle higher import volumes.
The price for this product is also characterized by very sharp
swings and largely influenced with chlorine demand & supply. The
price, except for few months, remained firm through out the year
and there is no sign of any downward trend due to ongoing high

energy cost.

Sulphur : This product is used in the manufacture of Carbon
di Sulphide (CSz) and Sulphuric Acid (sto4)' It is either available
naturally in mines in Canada, or as a by-product of oil refining
process. The company imports this mostly from refineries in
Singapore and Middle East. Prices have moved only in a very
narrow range through out the year but have since softened in the
last quarter of 2006.

Charcoal : This product is used in the manufacture of Carbon
di Sulphide (CSZ), a raw material for VRSF manufacturing,
produced for captive consumption. This product has seasonal
availability patterns, worsening in the rainy season. However, there
has been a general decline in availability of Charcoal resulting in
increase in prices by around 20% during the year. Though the
company has a fall back on importing C82 from China or
Indonesia, it would imply a sharp increase in costs. Looking at the
criticality of CSZ, the company has taken effective steps to set up a
new 082 manufacturing facility using natural gas, in Saraburi
Province for its total 682 requirement including that of expansion

project.
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Thailand domestic market has approximately 3.2 million
spindles producing Cotton, Polyester Rayon, Polyester Staple Fibre
and Viscose Yarns. The growth of spindles in Thailand is stagnant
compared to international CAGR of 3% and continues to decline
due to poor competitiveness of textile sector against its
competition with China, India and Indonesia. The company always
tries to meet the entire domestic demand and promote its sales
through its new product innovation & technical services. With the
new 4" production line commencing commercial production
shortly, Thai Rayon will offer new versatile ‘Modal’ fibre to the
market, which should enhance the offerings to the whole textile
value chain. Off late, there has been a strong demand of VRSF
both in domestic and export markets, which have brought down
the fiber inventory to one of its lowest levels. The sales volume in
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Thai Rayon is the only producer of VRSF in the country
and hence there is no domestic competition. The company follows
a fair price policy backed with commitment on delivery and value
added technical services. China, the largest producer & consumer
of VRSF in the World, accounts for 47% of global share. Today,
China has become dominating player due to its self-sufficiency
and is emerging as one of the strong competitor for VRSF exports.
Under post WTO situation, the company is trying to build on its
strengths in areas of consistent quality, wide product range,
lowering cost of production and strong customer service to
withstand the upcoming competition.

VRSF is cotton like fibre and always faces threat from the
substitute fibres like cotton & polyester. The prices of these
substitute products have direct bearing on the prices of VRSF.
Thailand being primarily a cotton consuming country, the price of
cotton plays an important role on the profit margins of the
company.

Post WTO regime, spinners from countries like India,
Pakistan and Indonesia are exporting to USA, Turkey and other
European countries, and being very cost competitive, has a major
bearing by way of reduced margins on Thailand spinners. Further
expansion of VRSF by many producers in other countries like
China, Pakistan will ease the availability of VRSF in 2007.
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** The company sold its business to Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Ltd. and is under liquidation.
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Transactions with Related Parties

choice

FAUFHN S U3 Ing ANFueu WUAA AndA (NUNTW) Company Name . Thai Carbon Black Public Co., Ltd. (TCB)
(TCB) Type of Business : Manufacturer of Carbon Black
szinnssna C NARKSLIINNAN Nature of Relationship : 24.98% Shareholding & Common Directors
m’lmﬁm’ﬁ"aa - 139N ﬁ’ﬂﬁu 24.98% LAZHNIINANTIINTL Revenue Transaction : Rent Income from Housing Colony : Baht
sela - Andtiuiniuses 2,940,000 L 2,940,000
a . o 'R fE : Baht 96,000
Funifualanesendneaiuauls 96,000 uwn SCOVery of Expenses - Ba
o o - - . Sale of Stores Materia : Baht 64,000
amhedanginsaliuunalng 64,000 1 . . i
o " - B 4y e . Rationale of Transaction | : The company rents out part of housing,
VI&I"I‘II‘EQﬂEI'lﬂ D UTENY 1‘1/1 LINUIURAIUUNUN UIUNNTUIAN S
2 ) 2 14,4 guest house and other facilities in its colony
Liawaﬁﬁﬁi%ﬂiﬂﬂ@uﬂ wn TCB e D]il’ u to TCB for its employees and guests. The
fuwnwiineukazuanaes TCB sealdann recovery of expenses and sale of stores
naGanfiuAnldanasendneiunaznisanming material is on cost basis.
5@@'@ﬂﬂ’:‘fﬁtmuﬂﬂtm§’§/ﬂ Lﬁﬂlui"]ﬂ’mu Expense Transaction . Purchase of Steam and Power: Baht
Aldans - AndadalatnLarnaaanu 313,466,000 LN 313,466,000
Fanifupnldanaszudnaiumuld 56,000 1m Reimbursement of Expenses : Baht 56,000
ﬁuqmﬂqﬁ.q’ldj’j’d’]ﬂ : m‘quﬂﬁlqlunizuquﬂq THARNILAN AU Rationale of Transaction | : TCB generates steam and power as part
TCB Aensuanletnuasndainy 15y e of its operations. The company purchases
mms%ﬂl‘mﬁdq ﬁ'ryﬁmn TCB @u51AN these critical utilities from TCB at formula
based market price.
naNA
FarFun ;17 Tne aridn Tiwes /e (TAF) Company Name : Thai Acrylic Fibre Co., Ltd. (TAF)
Uszinngsna - uandulaamian Type of Business : Manufacturer of Acrylic Fibre
AT RY © UTHENY 5@131:14 30% wardlnssunnsIaniu Nature of Relationship : 30% Shareholding & Common Directors
aele s anendalaiAsndaim 402,000 U (Fan | | Revenue Transaction  Sale of Sodium Sulphate: Baht 402,000
ViuAnlganeszudnafumAula 5,000 L Recovery of Expenses: Baht 5,000
a a o o ' o o . A B f
Aunaassels S uTEnY amdnaladsudamalddu TAF Rationale of Transaction | : The company sells its by-product Sodium
ANHTIATRANA Sulphate to TAF at market price.
A lgans : ﬁﬁﬁm%ﬂ’?ﬂ@ﬂqﬂnmﬂmuﬂﬂimf 1,350,000 L% Expense Transaction . Purchase of Stores Material : Baht 1,350,000
P 1o 2 o & e - o @ . . .
Nuraaspnldans P ANAATRIR Qqﬂﬂ sofununalnfamiulu Rationale of Transaction | : Purchase of store material was at market
TIANRANA price.
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Company Name

Type of Business
Nature of Relationship
Revenue Transaction

Rationale of Transaction

Expense Transaction

Rationale of Transaction

Company Name

Type of Business
Nature of Relationship
Revenue Transaction

Rationale of Transaction

Expense Transaction

Rationale of Transaction

Company Name

Type of Business

Nature of Relationship

Revenue Transaction

Rationale of Transaction

Expense Transaction

Rationale of Transaction

. Indo-Thai Synthetics Co., Ltd. (ITS)

. Manufacturer of Spun Yarns

: 7.56% Shareholding and Common Directors
. Sale of Fibre: Baht 1,275,663,000

Sale of Stores Material: Baht 2,000
Recovery of Expenses: 15,000

;. ITS is the biggest customer of the company.

The fibre sold to ITS is at international linked
market price with certain rebate for large
volume being a strategic buyer.

Recovery of Expenses and Sale of store
material is on cost basis.

. Reimbursement of Expenses: Baht 367,000

Purchase of stores material: Baht 6,000

. Reimbursement of expenses & purchase of

store material at cost price.

. Century Textiles Co., Ltd. (CEN)

: Manufacturer of Woven Fabrics

: Common Directors

. Sale of Sodium Sulphate: Baht 726,000

: The company sold its by-product Sodium

Sulphate at market price.

- Nil

. Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Ltd. (ABCT)

: Manufacturer of Caustic Soda, Chlorine

derivative products, Sodium Sulphite, Epoxy

Resins and Sodium Tri-Polyphosphates

: 30% (Common) Shareholding
: Sale of Sodium Sulphate : Baht 2,046,000

Recovery of Expense : Baht 22,000

: The company sold its by-product Sodium

Sulphate at market price.

Recovery of expenses is on cost basis.

: Purchase of Caustic Soda & Aux.

Material : Baht 125,275,000

Purchase of Store Material : Baht 72,000
Reimbursement of Expenses :

Baht 774,000

1 ABCT is one of the principal manufacturer

of Caustic Soda in Thailand and one of the
two domestic suppliers of this product. For
this key raw material, the company pays
to ABCT a comparable market price. The
purchase of Sodium Hypochlorite, Chlorine
and Epoxy Resins, in smaller quantities,
is done at market rates. The purchase of
store material is on market price.



%au‘%ﬁw 15 Ine wlefsanlad saia (TPL) Company Name : Thai Peroxide Co., Ltd. (TPL)
st - waslalasiawdlasaanlas Type of Business : Manufacturer of Hydrogen Peroxide
o . e a4 s . Y o o Nature of Relationship : 0.02% (Common) Shareholding, 14.7%
AMNLNEIURY : m‘l:}rzm nauuml’mni 0.02% Yu1jFuEND 14.7% (Preferred) Shareholding, and Common
LAZHNIINNTIINAY Directors
sela - -lad- Revenue Transaction : Nil
ﬁuqm@qmﬂ'lﬁ’ - Rationale of Transaction -
Arldane : ﬁﬂﬁm%@ia‘lﬁmmuLﬂ@f@ﬂﬂl‘nﬁ 590,000 LM Expense Transaction : Purchase of Hydrogen Peroxide: Baht
fanaasAtldane | USHmy 4adelalasiauileseenlad 4. _ , 290,000
ST . . - Rationale of Transaction | : The company purchased Hydrogen
Lﬂuﬂﬁimm:ﬂ'aﬁl,ﬂuzlmmun?zmumm@ R peroxide, a process chemical from TPL,
an TPL §aflunilslugessnaans a”mﬁm one of the two domestic manufacturers, at
nelutlszmne tadalusnaniignunsniesan negotiated rates.
rasaslé
Fa1dwm © 151 187 1mad a9A (AVC) asnaideulullszng Company Name - AV Cell Inc. (AVC), Canada
WAWIAN Type of Business : Manufacturer of Dissolving Grade Wood
Uszinngsna . wandenszaainazanenild Pulp
ANNRETR ;13N Defu 16.67% lWfEncduangfiedu| | Nature of Relationship | : 16.67% of Shareholding, Shareholder's
waziingsuniTaniu Loan & Common Directors
sela : WrmLﬁﬂ%’umﬂﬁu‘lﬁﬁﬁumnéﬁﬂﬁu 9,056,000 Revenue Transaction . Interest on Shareholder Loan : Baht
Um 9,056,000
Hanvassele - 130 W AVC diinRSuszezantangfiefu| | Rationale of Transaction | : The company has extended a long-term
waldsunenidelusnmadiiiie foudnanlu shareholders loan to AVC on which it
AAA receives interest at fixed rate, comparable to
Algane . AndngelEanszen 824,395,000 LM market rates.
Fanaasaldane | uSEny ﬁm"ryryﬁnﬁis*u%m:ﬂszm"ﬁm‘”u Expense Transaction : Purchase of Pulp: Baht 824,395,000

; i
Wenszawadnazanain Suduingiudndny
a1n AVC lusnanfisuiAgeiusanaes
bo L

ganmineialyl

Rationale of Transaction

: The company has a long term buying

agreement with AVC for Dissolving Grade
Wood Pulp, its primary raw material, at
market rate, comparable to an independent

supplier.
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1. Production

The VRSF production during the year was 79,461 tons,
430 tons more than the previous year. The Anhydrous Sodium
Sulphate production in 2006 was also at a record high of 61,166
tons translating into a recovery of 77%, as against 77.8% in 2005.

2. Sales Revenue

The sales revenue in 2006 was Baht 5,341 Million as
against Baht 5,325 Million in 2005. Despite higher volume, the
sales revenues did not increase in proportion as realization was
lower by 1.8% on account of appreciation of Thai Baht by 2.6%
against USS.

Due to strong domestic demand, the VRSF exports
sales, both in terms of volume as well as value, decreased to
49% in 2006 as against 53% in the previous year. The gap
between average export selling price and domestic selling price
is almost non-existent due to strengthening of Baht.

The sales volume of by-product Sodium Sulphate in
2006 was 62,066 tons, nearly 3.5% higher as compared to
59,945 tons in 2005. The share of Sodium sulphate sales
revenue as a percentage of total sales revenue was lower at
4.3% as against 4.5% last year.

3. Equity in Net Income

The share of profits from investments accounted for
under Equity method was lower at Baht 407 Million as compared
to Baht 718 Million last year, reflecting lower margins at their
business due to higher oil price and interest rate.

4. Other Income

The interest income from the surplus funds placed with
the financial institutions was substantially higher by 149%, from
Baht 55 Million to Baht 137 Million, due to more surplus funds
and continuous upward trend in interest rates from 3.5% in 2005
to 5.5% in 2006. The income from export incentives was
marginally lower at Baht 45 Million as against Baht 47 Million on
account of lower export volume as compared to the previous year.
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The cost of sales was higher at Baht 4,139 Million, against
Baht 4,090 Million last year, on account of 2% higher production
cost impacted on account of energy rates, though the average
prices of Pulp & Caustic were lower by about 4.2%. The selling
and administrative expenses were also lower at Baht 310 Million
from Baht 316 Million, primarily because of lower sea freight costs
on account of less exports volumes. Interest expenses were higher
due to temporary borrowings of short-term loans for working
capital. The company incurred a foreign exchange rate loss of
Baht 38 Million this year as against gain of Baht 20 Million in the
previous year due to strengthening of Thai Baht, mainly on account
of export credit bills and dollar denominated loan revaluation. The
company paid Baht 922,095 as audit fees to the company
auditors, for the current year, including out of pocket expenses.

This year's net profit decreased to Baht 1,161 Million as
against Baht 1,532 Million in the previous year, mainly on account
of decrease in share of profit from investments accounted
for under equity method from Baht 718 Million to Baht 407 Million.
Earnings from operating activities in 2006 were lower at Baht 612
Million, as against Baht 686 Million in 2005 due to lower sales
realization on account of strengthening of Thai Baht against US$
and higher energy cost.

Assets

The total assets as at 30" September 2006 amounted
to Baht 11,393 Million, an increase of Baht 1,332 Million, or 13%
year-on-year. Details of major assets are as follows:

* Liquid Cash: Short-term placement, loan and cash in
bank were higher at Baht 3,289 Million as compared to Baht 2,740
Million in last year.

» Property, Plant and Equipment: There was an increase
in fixed assets due to capital expenditure of Baht 612 Million spent
during the year for capacity expansion, expected to be finished in
early 2007.

Investments

The investments accounted for under equity method
increased by 10% to Baht 4,457 Million, due to the accounting of
income of Baht 407 Million of affiiate companies. The other
long-term investments decreased by 16% to Baht 1,075 Million due
to repayment of preference share capital of Baht 600 Million by an
affiliated company and changes in market value of one of the
marketable securities.

Liabilities

The total liabilities for the year ended amounted to Baht
582 Million, an increase of Baht 96 Million, on account of higher
provision for corporate income tax payable and increased trade
liabilities.

Shareholders’ Equity

The shareholders’ equity at the year-end was higher by Baht 1,236
Million, or 13% year-on-year at Baht 10,810 Million, on account of
additions of profits for the year and adjustments of unrealized

gains on long-term investments.
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Liquidity Ratios :

The company’s current ratio was slightly lower at 10.17
times; down from 11.30 times last year, overall an extremely robust
liquidity position. The current assets increased by 12% while the
current liabilities increased by 25%, as explained above.

Debt to Equity Ratios :

The company has historically maintained very low debt to
equity ratio. At the year-end, the company did not have any
borrowings except minor overdrawn balances. The ratio of total
liabilities to shareholders’ fund stands negligibly at 0.06:1.

Activity Ratios :

The assets turnover ratio was lower at 0.56 as against 0.66
in the previous year because total assets increased by 13% mainly
on account of increase in capital work in progress for capacity
expansion project. The inventory turnover ratio also improved to
7.61 times as against 7.06 times in the previous year due to 6%
lower inventory, mainly that of finished goods stock.

Profitability Ratios:

The net operating margin (excluding equity in net income)
on sales works out to 14% as against 15% last year. The profit is
lower mainly because of realization being lower by 1.8% and
higher energy cost of about 12.5%. The return on average
shareholders’ equity, based on total profit after tax, reduced to
11.4% as against 17% last year; on account of 43% lower equity

income from the associated companies.

Financial Ratios

2549 / 2006 2548 / 2005 2547 | 2004
10.17 11.30 9.15
19.50 24.52 22.80
11.40 17.22 16.53
10.83 16.29 15.58
0.56 0.66 0.68
7.61 7.06 5.54
0.06 Nil Nil
27% 28% 23%

Note: Efficiency & profitability ratios are lower for the current year due to lower
profit and higher fixed asset base due to ongoing expansion project for
production increase.

1) Audit Fee
The company paid the audit fee of Baht 922,095 for the year
2006.

2) Non-Audit Fee
-None-
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1. Risks relating to Financial Management

e Interest Rate and Foreign Exchange Risk on Loans : The
company carries no short-term or long-term loans and is, therefore,
not exposed to either exchange rate risk or interest rate risk on
loans.

e Interest Rate and Credit Risk on Short-term Investments :
Interest rates continued to move upwards during the year on
account of increase in rates by US. Since the company has large
cash position, this upward trend is positive for the company. The
company makes every effort to exercise significant prudence in
selecting only healthy financial institutions and fixing maximum
exposure limit for each institution with varying tenors, up to a
maximum tenor of one year, for such investments.

e Exchange Rate Risk on Forex Flows : The company
exports on an average 45-50% of its production. At the same time,
the key raw materials are imported. Both exports and imports are
denominated in US Dollars except small amount of export in Euro
currency. The volume of exports and imports roughly balanced,
therefore, the company uses natural hedge by utilizing exports
dollar revenue to pay out for imports. However, the increasing
trend of prices of imported raw materials and capital goods could
skew this natural balance and create net short dollar exposure, or
vice versa. In the event of net short or long dollar exposure, the
company normally follows the policy of regular buying or selling of
dollar on spot except occasionally taking forward cover, in case of

higher requirements for capital goods imports.

2. Risks relating to Revenues and Profits

e Risk of fluctuation in Raw Material Prices : The prices of the
three raw materials, pulp, caustic soda and sulphur, are key
drivers of production costs, and each of these products exhibits
very volatile swings in their prices, thereby influencing the
profitability significantly-both ways. The ability to pass on the full
impact of the increased cost through higher selling prices of rayon
fibre is limited by the textile market conditions and competition
from substitute fibres. The company follows a consistent policy of
buying the raw material on quarterly basis, and as far as possible,

selling the finished product on quarterly basis.
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e Risk from Selling Prices of Substitute Fibres : The viscose
fibre is substantially used as blend with polyester or cotton fibre.
The price of cotton fibre is greatly influenced by a bumper crop or
crop failure and particularly, Thailand being a primarily cotton
consuming country; its impact is more visible. Polyester fibre
industry is characterized by massive glut in production capacity
and also having oil based raw material. Both these products
exhibit wild swings in their prices, which influence the spinners to
play with the blending ratios of various fibres. While viscose fibre
has an identity of its own, the fluctuations in price of substitute
fibres do have the potential to exert significant pressure on its
price, if not significant shifts in its demand pattern. This carries
risks as well as provides opportunities.

e Risk from Exchange Rate : The company always benefits
from a weaker exchange rate. This increases the competitiveness
of its fibre as also the competitiveness of its customers who
process fibre for export purposes. Since the sales revenues are
directly influenced by exchange rate, while the costs are only
partly influenced by exchange rate, the total revenues
and profits are affected adversely in a stronger exchange rate

situation. This is a normal business risk.

3. Risks relating to Marketing

e Risk of Country Exposure: Turkey, Pakistan, Brazil & Iran
have emerged as strong contenders in textile trade after the
abolition of MFA quotas in 2005. Accordingly the company has
increased its sales to customers in these countries. The company
has a policy to promote its product to new countries to enlarge its
customer base. However, this exposes to the political & financial
risks faced by some countries from time to time.

e Risk of Customer Exposure: The company has 4 main local
customers. One of the customers is related company and buys
more than 20% of the company’s production on credit terms.
However this customer has wide international clientele base and
therefore, company does not foresee any major credit risk. The
company sales to some export buyers in USA and Canada, on
credit through a trading company in USA, which covers their
exposure under credit insurance policy. Such exposure to one
customer is not over USD 250,000. The company keeps a constant
watch on such credits.

e Risk of New Applications: Over the years, the company has
increased its focus on the premium and growing segment of
non-woven and other high-end knitting textile segment. With
commissioning of its 4" line in January 2007, the company will
further acquire the capability to make High Wet Modulus (Modal)
Fibre used for high-end cotton-blended specialty woven
applications. Through sustained up-gradation of its expertise and
capability, the company is capable of handling the more
demanding requirements of various segments. However, as it
addresses the higher end of specialty products, there is an
exposure to quality related claims, in the initial period of market
development, which is quite normal in any industry. The company
has obtained expertise by hiring experienced consultants in
building up necessary capabilities to minimize this risk.
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e Risk of Product Obsolesce : The company keeps a track of
new product development in the cellulose family through the
R&D centre of the Group in India. The company has already
identified “Birla Modal” as next growth area and is adopting this
new technology in its new production line #4. The company does

not fore see any product obsolesce risk for its current products.

4. Risks from Operations

e Risk related to Environment : During the process of
manufacturing of viscose rayon staple fibre, various liquid and air
pollutants are generated. The company has made substantial
investments over the years and in last one year spent more than
Baht 106 million in strengthening its Effluent Treatment Plant (ETP).
It presently meets all the standards prescribed by the Ministry of
Industry. All the solid wastes of the company are properly
segregated and sent for disposal to duly licensed agencies.
The actual levels are regularly monitored by the company and
government agencies. Any situation of improper treatment carries
environmental and political risks. The company assigns highest
priority to remain well within the maximum allowable limits. During
the year, the company, at its own, carried out Environment Impact
Assessment (EIA) study from an outside consultant and based on
the consultant’s report, the required actions are being taken to
strengthen the system. The company has also obtained ISO 14000
accreditation to have a proper documented environment
management system and practices. Despite the above, the
company perceives the risk of any accidental disturbance to
environment to be medium to high.

e Risk from Storage and Handling : The company and
contractors transport hazardous chemicals like Caustic Soda,
Sulphur, Carbon di Sulphide and Sulphuric Acid and are stored
at company’s premises. The company follows required standards
for their transportation or storage. Though there has never been
any serious accident relating to these products, the company
perceives the risk of accidental or mis-operation.

e Risk from Raw Material Availability : Charcoal is the key raw
material in the manufacture of Carbon di Sulphide (CSZ), a key
ingredient in the manufacture of VRSF. Availability of Charcoal is
dwindling with declining wood resources as well tighter
Governmental regulations. To mitigate its short supply, the
company is setting up a Natural Gas based CS2 production facility
at an investment of Baht 656 Million to ensure steady supply of
CSZ, which will enable the company to discontinue use of charcoal,
thereby helping indirectly to the environment control.

e Risk from Manufacturing Operations : The company has an
exhaustive preventive and predictive maintenance system (TPM,
Six Sigma) to ensure good health of all its manufacturing
equipments. It also has a regulated system of equipment after
designated life. The company is highly committed to safety.
Besides a very high level of safety consciousness amongst all
employees and rigorous training and investment in all the

necessary safety equipment, the company conducts mock drills,
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emergency plan simulation etc. to ensure highest standard of

alertness.

5. External Risks

e Geo-political Risk: The geo political events like terrorism cast
their repercussions worldwide, increasing costs and risks of
business and impacting supply and demand cycles. The political
tension in South of Thailand is a cause of concern to domestic
business community. The company expects that the recent
peaceful political changes in the country will not have any adverse
impact on its business.

e Risk from Regulatory changes in countries where Company
has investments: The company has made strategic investments
(backward and forward integration) by subscribing in equity capital
of companies registered in other countries, along with other group
companies. While company does not envisage any risk to such
investments, a regulatory change in those countries may have
some impact on their financial performance.

e Global Economy: Under post WTO scenario, the textile
industry in particular has been facing a fierce competition from
China, India, Indonesia and Pakistan. Higher oil price also pose
challenge to control the production costs including that of our raw
materials. However, the company’s strong product quality/brand
and financial position should continue to help during the period of

economic recession.
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To Shareholders,

The Board of Directors of Thai Rayon Public Co.,Ltd. has
assigned the Audit Committee and the Management of the
company to review the financial statements of the company for the
year ended 30 September 2006. The Audit Committee,
Management and the Independent Auditors have reported that the
company'’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), based on
proper accounting policy, reasonable accounting estimates and

adequate disclosure.

The Audit Committee in their report to shareholders has
also reported that the company has properly recorded and
compiled the financial position and operational results of the
company. The company also has in place appropriate internal
controls and risk management system to protect its assets

and interest of all its stakeholders.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the company
has an adequate and appropriate internal control systems, and is
confident that the company’s financial statements for the year

ended 30 September 2006 can be considered reliable.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors

P.M. Bajaj

President and Director
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To Shareholders,

The Board Of Directors of Thai Rayon Public Co. Ltd
appointed the current Audit Committee on 30 January 2006 for a
period of 3 years. The audit committee consists of 3 independent
directors namely, Mr. S.S. Mahansaria as Chairman, Mr. Vinai
Sachdev and Mr. R.K. Rathi as members of the committee. None
of the audit committee members are executive of the company.

The audit committee is authorized to review the company’s
financial statements so that it conforms to the generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP), to review the company’s internal
control system and internal audit and to ensure that the company’s
operations are in compliance with regulations and legal
requirements. In addition, the committee is required to consider the
disclosure of the company’s information in cases relating to or that
are in conflict with the company’s interest, to recommend the
appointment of auditors, to review that the company has efficient
risk management, to report its performance to the board of
directors at least four times a year, to prepare an audit committee
report which is to be included in the company’s annual report and
to perform any other duties assigned by the company’s board of
directors.

In 2006, the audit committee held 4 meetings, discussed
and reviewed following items during their meetings:

1. Reviewed quarterly financial reports and the annual financial
statements for its accuracy and adequacy.

2. Reviewed the company’s performance to ensure compliance
with rules and regulations of Securities and Exchange
Commission, Stock Exchange of Thailand and other laws
related to its business.

3. Reviewed the related party transactions, its accuracy and
adequate disclosures in the financial statement/reports. The
Audit Committee were of the opinion that such transactions
were on an arm-length basis and at fair market value.

4. Reviewed the company’s internal control and legal compliance
system and liaison with the external auditors.

5. Reviewed the company’s risk management system and its
adequacy.

6. Recommending on the appointment of statutory auditors and
their fees to the board of directors.

The audit committee is of the opinion that the company
pursued the good corporate governance policy and the
management and control systems of the company are adequate
and appropriate. The committee is also of the opinion that the
management team of the company pay attention and take action in
improving and correcting the work systems that can support its
operations efficiently and effectively.

=

(Mr. S.S Mahasaria)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Date: 23 November 2006
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Report of Independent Auditor

To The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Thai Rayon Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited as at 30 September
2006 and 2005, and the related statements of earnings, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management as to their correctness
and the completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements

based on my audits.

The financial statements of 4 associated companies as at 30 September 2006 were reviewed by the associates’
auditors, whose reports have been furnished to me. My opinion on the Company’s financial statements, insofar as it relates
to the amounts included for these associated companies, is based solely on the reports of those other auditors. Included in
the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2006 were net share of profit of Baht 93 million from investments
in 4 associated companies, (the total net book value of these investments accounted for under the equity method
amounted to Baht 2,054 million as at 30 September 2006), which were determined based on the financial statements

reviewed by the auditors of these companies.

| conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
| plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. | believe that my audits and the reports of

the other auditors referred to in the second paragraph provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, based on my audits and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited as at 30
September 2006 and 2005, the results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles.

Supachai Phanyawattano
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3930

Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok : 21 November 2006
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Balance Sheets

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2006 AND 2005

(Unit : Baht)
Note 2006 2005
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,713,583,683 1,153,504,008
Short-term investments 5 1,575,583,606 1,586,518,751
Trade accounts receivable
Other parties 6 335,732,569 537,275,017
Related parties 6,7 333,981,961 274,657,805
Advance for purchase of raw materials - related party 7 109,855,453 -
Inventories 8 543,605,292 579,002,197
Other current assets
Input tax refundable 46,273,241 32,062,986
Export incentive receivable 18,680,333 18,244,409
Others 48,813,404 21,551,662
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 4,726,109,542 4,202,816,835
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in related parties accounted for under equity method 9 4,457,350,960 4,053,824,458
Other long-term investments 10 1,075,311,177 1,287,237,097
Long-term loan to related party 7 150,927,300 156,500,100
Property, plant and equipment - net 11 967,212,989 354,615,976
Other non-current assets 15,894,127 5,671,875

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

6,666,696,553

5,857,849,506

TOTAL ASSETS

11,392,806,095

10,060,666,341

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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BalanC€ Sheéts (Continued)

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2006 AND 2005

(Unit : Baht)
Note 2006 2005
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank overdrafts 5,491,805 2,515,668
Trade accounts payable
Other parties 92,651,551 51,802,337
Related parties 7 58,730,941 56,663,941
Other current liabilities
Corporate income tax payable 162,657,548 142,845,855
Accrued expenses 113,081,589 98,579,384
Others 32,124,639 19,578,542
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 464,738,073 371,985,727
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for employee retirement benefit 110,049,741 103,671,975
Other non-current liabilties 7,676,873 10,580,823
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 117,726,614 114,252,798
TOTAL LIABILITIES 582,464,687 486,238,525
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital 12
Registered, issued and fully paid
201,600,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
(30 September 2005 : 20,160,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each) 201,600,000 201,600,000
Unrealised gain from changes in fair value of investment
in available-for-sale securities 10 666,010,463 347,556,383
Translation adjustment (225,894,935) (223,800,994)
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Statutory reserve 13 20,160,000 20,160,000

General reserve

2,500,000,000

2,500,000,000

Unappropriated

7,648,465,880

6,728,912,427

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

10,810,341,408

9,674,427,816

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

11,392,806,095

10,060,666,341

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Earnings

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2006 AND 2005

(Unit : Baht)
Note 2006 2005
REVENUES
Sales 5,340,812,048 5,325,224,191
Share of profit from investments accounted for under equity method 406,857,577 717,688,796
Other income
Interest income 137,007,954 55,272,791
Export incentives 44,980,771 47,391,659
Gain on exchange - 19,769,170
Dividend income 5,896,761 63,618,183
Others 20,986,603 18,319,420
TOTAL REVENUES 5,956,541,714 6,247,284,210
EXPENSES
Cost of sales 4,138,682,212 4,090,459,384
Selling and administrative expenses 310,358,793 316,179,035
Directors’ remuneration 14 820,000 640,000
Loss on exchange 38,289,186 -
TOTAL EXPENSES 4,488,150,191 4,407,278,419
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST EXPENSES AND INCOME TAX 1,468,391,523 1,840,005,791
INTEREST EXPENSES (2,478,270) (253,850)
CORPORATE INCOME TAX 15 (304,439,800) (308,198,971)
NET EARNINGS FOR THE YEAR 1,161,473,453 1,5631,552,970
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 3.9
Net earnings 5.76 7.60
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares) 201,600,000 201,600,000
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Changes 1in Shareholders’ Equity

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2006 AND 2005

(Unit : Baht)
Retained earnings
Unrealised
gain from Appropriated

changes in

fair value of

Issued and  investment

paid-up in available-

share for-sale Translation Statutory General
Note capital securities adjustment reserve reserve  Unappropriated Total

Balance - as at 30 September 2004 201,600,000 261,836,117 (188,264,789) 20,160,000 2,500,000,000 5,419,089,537  8,214,420,865
Increase in fair value of investment - 85,720,266 - - - - 85,720,266
Translation adjustment - - (35,536,205) - - - (35,536,205)
Net earnings for the year - - - - - 1,531,552,970  1,531,552,970
Dividend payment 17 - - - - - (221,730,080)  (221,730,080)
Balance - as at 30 September 2005 201,600,000 347,556,383 (223,800,994) 20,160,000 2,500,000,000 6,728,912,427  9,574,427,816
Increase in fair value of investment - 318,454,080 - - - - 318,454,080
Translation adjustment - - (2,093,941) - - - (2,093,941)
Net earnings for the year - - - - - 1,161,473,453  1,161,473,453
Dividend payment 17 - - - - - (241,920,000)  (241,920,000)
Balance - as at 30 September 2006 201,600,000 666,010,463 (225,894,935) 20,160,000 2,500,000,000 7,648,465,880 10,810,341,408

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Cash flows

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2006 AND 2005

2006

(Unit : Baht)
2005

Cash flows from operating activities

Net earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided
by (paid for) operating activities :-
Depreciation and amortisation

Share of profit from investments accounted for under equity method

1,161,473,453

80,994,865
(406,857,577)

1,631,552,970

61,061,937
(717,688,796)

Dividend income (5,896,761) (63,618,183)
Gain on disposals of fixed assets (611,511) (2,980,591)
Unrealised loss (gain) on exchange 5,425,777 (9,519,840)
Provision for employee retirement benefit 8,810,496 9,449,569
Earnings from operating activities before changes in operating
assets and liabilities 843,338,742 808,257,066
Decrease (increase) in operating assets :-
Trade accounts receivable
Other parties 201,639,642 (123,161,916)
Related parties (59,324,156) 410,834,829
Advance for purchase of raw materials - related party (109,855,453) 145,990,247
Inventories 35,396,905 69,295,741
Other current assets (36,011,160) (9,764,284)
Other non-current assets (10,723,752) 24,500
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities :-
Trade accounts payable
Other parties 40,899,043 17,170,165
Related parties 2,067,000 26,116,063
Other current liabilities 46,859,995 (88,674,846)
Payment of employee retirement benefit (2,432,730) (5,190,853)
Net cash from operating activities 951,854,076 1,250,896,712

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Cash flows (continued

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2006 AND 2005

(Unit : Baht)
2006 2005
Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease (increase) in short-term investments 10,935,145 (744,334,586)
Dividend received from related parties 57,397,134 131,083,982
Increase in investments in associated companies (56,160,000) (191,102,270)
Decrease in other long-term investments 530,380,000 -
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 616,355 2,982,791

Purchases of fixed assets

(693,095,222)

(125,930,688)

Net cash used in investing activities

(149,926,588)

(927,300,771)

Cash flows from financing activities

Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities

Payments of dividend

2,976,137
(2,903,950)
(241,920,000)

(3,720,460)
1,486,762
(221,730,080)

Net cash used in financing activities

(241,847,813)

(223,963,778)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

560,079,675
1,153,504,008

99,632,163
1,053,871,845

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

1,713,583,683

1,153,504,008

Supplemental cash flows information :-
Cash paid during the year for
Interest expenses

Corporate income tax

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Thai Rayon Public Company Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated as a limited company under Thai laws and later
changed its status to a public company under the Public Limited Companies Act on 4 October 1993. The Company operates in
Thailand and its principal activity is the manufacture of Viscose Rayon Staple Fibre and Anhydrous Sodium Sulphate to sell to
both domestic and export markets. The registered addresses of the Company’s head office and factory are as follows:-

Factory : 36 Moo 2 Ayuthaya-Angthong Highway, Posa, Muang, Angthong.
Head office : 888/160-1 Mahatun Plaza Building, 16th Floor, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini, Patumwan Bangkok.

2. BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated under the Accounting
Profession Act B.E. 2547. The presentation of the financial statements has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the
Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 14 September 2001, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for those that have been disclosed in the
accounting policy.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are summarised below.
3.1 Revenue recognition

a) Sales
Sales represent the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods delivered, after deducting goods returned,
discount and allowance.

b) Export incentives
Export incentives granted by the Ministry of Finance are recognised as income when export shipment is made.

c) Interest and dividend income
Interest is recognised as income on an accrual basis. Dividend income is recognised when rights to receive dividend
are established.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at banks and
short-term investments with an original maturity of 3 months or less and without commitment.

3.3 Inventories
Finished goods and work in process are valued at the lower of cost (average method) or net realisable value. Cost is
defined as all the costs of production including attributable factory overheads.
Raw materials, spare parts and supplies are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or net realisable value.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Land is stated at cost. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of plant
and equipment is calculated on the straight-line method at the following rates:-

Buildings and improvements -5 percent per annum
Machinery and equipment - 20 percent per annum
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment - 5,20 percent per annum
Computer hardware - 20,33.33 percent per annum

Motor vehicles - 20 percent per annum
No depreciation is charged for land.

Depreciation is included in determining earnings.

3.5 Investments
Short-term investments in debt securities expected to be held to maturity are determined at amortised cost.
The premium/discount on debt securities is amortised using the straight-line method with the amortised amount included
in determining earnings.
Investments in associated companies are stated under equity accounting method. Under this method, for each
accounting period, the investments are adjusted to incorporate the Company’s proportionate share of the operating results
in associated companies.
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Long-term investments in related companies and investment in preference shares, which are non-marketable equity
securities, are stated at cost. The Company recognises loss on impairment, other than a temporary decline, of these
investments when the fair value of the investments is lower than their cost, and the loss is included in determining
earnings, if any.

Long-term investments in marketable equity securities which the Company intends to hold as available-for-sale securities
are determined at fair value. Fair value is based on the latest market price from the Stock Exchange at the balance sheet
date. Changes in the value of investments are shown as a separate item under shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.

3.6 Provision for employee retirement benefit
Provision for employee retirement benefit is presented as non-current liabilities in the balance sheet, and determined
in accordance with the basis and conditions stipulated in the regulations of the Company.

3.7 Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions incurred during the year are translated into Baht at the rates ruling on the transaction
dates. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency outstanding on the balance sheet date are translated into
Baht at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date.
Exchange gain and loss are included in determining earnings.

3.8 Translation of foreign currency financial statements
The financial statements of the associated companies incorporated in overseas are translated into Thai Baht at the
closing exchange rate for assets and liabilities, and at the average exchange rate for revenues and expenses. The
resultant difference has been shown under the caption of “Translation adjustment” in the shareholders’ equity.

3.9 Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share for the year is calculated by dividing the net earnings for the year by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares held by outside shareholders outstanding at the balance sheet date.
For comparative purpose, basic earnings per share for the year ended 30 September 2005 is recalculated by dividing net
earnings for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, after reflecting the effect of the change in the
par value of the ordinary shares from Baht 10 each to Baht 1 each on 31 January 2006, outstanding at the balance sheet
date.

3.10 Use of accounting estimates
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management
to make estimates for certain accounting transactions, affecting amounts reported in the financial statements and notes
related thereto. Subsequent actual results may differ from these estimates.

4. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED COSTS
For the years ended 30 September

2006 2005
Number of employees at end of year (persons) 793 782
Employee costs for the year (Million Baht) 365 351

5. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

As at the balance sheet date, short-term investments of the Company consisted of :-

(Unit : Baht)
30 September 2006 30 September 2005
Fixed deposits at banks 580,000,000 -
Investments in held-to-maturity debt securities — due within 1 year
- BOT bonds - 1,386,724,878
- Treasury bills 49,273,555 199,793,873
- Debentures 946,310,051 -
Total 1,5675,583,606 1,586,518,751

6. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
As at the balance sheet date, most of the trade accounts receivable were within the credit terms and no receivables were
more than 3 months past due.
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7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the years, the Company had significant business transactions with its associated companies and related
companies (related by way of holding interest and/or common directors). Such transactions have been concluded on the terms
and basis as determined by the Company, the associated companies and the related companies on an arm-length basis.
The significant transactions can be summarized as follows :-

(Unit : Million Baht)

Pricing policy For the years ended 30 September
2006 2005
Transactions with associated companies
Sales of goods With reference to market prices " 17
Dividend income As declared 57 67
Other income By mutual agreement 3 12
Purchase of raw materials With reference to market prices 450 393
Transactions with related companies
Sales of goods With reference to market prices 1,276 1,162
Dividend income As declared - 58
Other income By mutual agreement 9 13
Purchase of raw materials With reference to market prices 825 827
Lendings (weighted average balance of Bearing interest at 6 percent per annum 153 149

loans outstanding during the year)

The outstanding balances of the above transactions are separately shown in the balance sheets as detailed as follows :-

(Unit : Baht)
30 September 2006 30 September 2005
Trade accounts receivable - related parties
Associated company
- Thai Polyphosphate and Chemicals Co., Ltd. 211,860 211,860
Related companies
- Indo-Thai Synthetics Co., Ltd. 333,674,430 274,239,905
- Others 95,671 206,040
Total 333,981,961 274,657,805
Advance for purchase of raw materials - related party
Related company
- AV Cell Inc. 109,855,453 -
Total 109,855,453 -
Long-term loan to related party
Related Company
- AV Cell Inc. 150,927,300 156,500,100
Total 150,927,300 156,500,100

The long-term loan to AV Cell Inc. represents the lending in Canadian dollars of CAD 4.5 million, bearing interest at the
rate of 6 percent per annum, with repayment to be made every January in annual installments of CAD 500,000 from 2004 to
2007 and the remaining balance to be paid in full in January 2008. However, AV Cell Inc. has taken a secured loan from the
Provincial Government of New Brunswick, Canada, for its project expansion and as per the condition of this loan, the repayment
to shareholders’ loans shall be made only after the loan of Provincial Government is fully repaid. Accordingly, the Company had
on 17 May 2004 entered into a subordination agreement with AV Cell Inc. for the change of the repayment condition of its loan to
be made in 2 equal annual installments due on 1 January 2009 and 1 January 2010.
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30 September 2006

(Unit : Baht)

30 September 2005

Trade accounts payable - related parties

Associated companies

- Thai Carbon Black Public Co., Ltd. 33,316,644 22,135,607
- Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Ltd.
(formerly known as “Thai Organic Chemicals Co., Ltd.”) 25,331,206 34,519,249
- Others - 7,185
Related companies
- Others 83,091 1,900
Total 58,730,941 56,663,941

Undertakings of associated company’s credit facilities

Alexandria Fiber Co., S.A.E., an associated company in Egypt (as detailed in Note 9), entered into two credit facility

agreements with two foreign financial institutions to obtain various types of credit facilities from them, with respective maximum

credit line of not exceeding USD 36.6 million and USD 8 million, respectively. The Company has issued undertakings for a

maximum limit of totaling USD 6.3 million to the said lending financial institutions for this associated company.

INVENTORIES

30 September 2006

(Unit : Baht)
30 September 2005

Finished goods 27,767,017 112,337,458
Work in process 50,828,389 59,452,876
Raw materials 224,591,440 265,436,615
Raw materials in transit 51,615,416 59,428,003
Factory supplies, spare parts and packaging materials 188,803,030 82,347,245
Total 543,605,292 579,002,197

INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER EQUITY METHOD

As at the balance sheet date, these represented investments in ordinary shares of the following companies :-

(Unit : Baht)
30 September 2006 30 September 2005
Business activity Paid up capital  Company’s Cost Equity Cash Cost Equity Cash
(Million Baht) interest in method method dividend method method dividend
equity capital
(Percent)
Investments in associated companies
PT Indo Liberty Textiles Manufacture of 42,549 40 197,908,850 289,001,636 1,748,047 197,908,850 266,722,511 1,130,126
(Registered in Indonesia) synthetic yarn (Million Indonesia
Rupiah)
Aditya Birla Chemicals Manufacture of 1,700 30 509,606,050 904,777,730 509,606,050 761,388,679 -
(Thailand) Ltd. (Formerly chemical products
known as “Thai Organic
Chemicals Co., Ltd.”)
Thai Acrylic Fibre Co., Ltd. Manufacture of 713 30 407,215,190 877,585,222 10,686,587 407,215,190 841,104,614 21,373,173
acrylic fiber
Thai Carbon Black Public Manufacture of 300 24.98 236,336,633 1,442,017,018 44,962,500 236,336,633 1,316,857,653 44,962,500
Co., Ltd. carbon black
Thai Polyphosphate and Manufacture 125 49 64,062,500 669,364,013 64,062,500 615,266,475 -
Chemicals Co., Ltd. of phosphate
Alexandria Fiber Co., S.A.E. Manufacture 150 275 266,794,314 218,475,341 266,794,314 252,484,526 -
(Registered in Egypt) of acrylic fiber (Million Egyptian
Pound)
Birla Lao Pulp & Plantations Manufacture of 5 30 56,160,000 56,160,000 - -
Co., Ltd. Pulp (Million USD)
(Registered in the Lao PDR)
Total investments in related parties 1,738,083,537 4,457,350,960 57,397,134 1,681,923,537 4,053,824,458 67,465,799
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The Board of Directors Meeting held on 13 October 2005 approved the Company’s non-exercise of its right to purchase
shares of Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Ltd. (formerly known as “Thai Organic Chemicals Co., Ltd.”) which increased its
registered ordinary share capital from Baht 1,040 million (104 million ordinary shares of Baht 10 each) to Baht 1,700 million (170
million ordinary shares of Baht 10 each), by granting existing shareholders the right to buy 3.173077 new shares for every 5
shares held, at the par value of Baht 10 each. Resulting from the non-exercise of its rights, the Company’s shareholding in
Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Ltd. after the capital increase has reduced from 49 percent to approximately 30 percent.

As approved by the Board of Directors Meeting held on 13 October 2005, the Company, along with overseas group companies decided
to establish a company in the Lao PDR, Birla Lao Pulp & Plantations Ltd., which is to undertake Eucalyptus tree plantation suitable for pulp
production. The Company will invest USD 7.5 million or equivalent to approximately Baht 310 million to subscribe 30 percent of shareholding
in this new company. Accordingly, on 16 August 2006, the Company paid for the ordinary shares of Birla Lao Pulp & Plantations Ltd.
amounting to USD 1.5 million (1,500 ordinary shares of USD 1,000 each) or equivalent to approximately Baht 56 million. As at 30 September
2006, the above company has not started its commercial operation.

The Company accounted investments in ordinary shares of associated companies under equity method of which
accounting periods of all associated companies are different from that of the Company.

Shares of profit of total Baht 127 million from PT Indo Liberty Textiles, Thai Acrylic Fibre Co., Ltd. and Thai Polyphosphate
and Chemicals Co., Ltd., and share of loss of Baht 34 million from Alexandria Fiber Co., S.A.E. were determined based on the
financial statements, which were reviewed by the auditors of these companies.

10. OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

(Unit : Baht)
30 September 2006 30 September 2005
Investment in available-for-sale securities
Grasim Industries Limited 126,531,636 126,531,636
Unrealised gain from changes in fair value of investment 666,010,463 347,556,383
792,542,099 474,088,019
General investments-related companies
Ordinary shares
Indo-Thai Synthetics Co., Ltd. 42.174,078 42,174,078
Thai Epoxy and Allied Products Co., Ltd. 64,000,000 64,000,000
AV Cell Inc. 94,125,000 94,125,000
AV Nackawic Inc. 69,620,000 -
Others 6,350,000 6,350,000
Preference shares
Thai Peroxide Co.,Ltd. 6,500,000 6,500,000
Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Ltd.
(Formerly known as “Thai Organic Chemicals Co., Ltd.”) i 600,000,000
282,769,078 813,149,078
Total other long-term investments 1,075,311,177 1,287,237,097

As at 30 September 2005, investment in preference shares of Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Ltd. (Formerly known as
“Thai Organic Chemicals Co., Ltd.”) represents 50 percent interest of preference shares of that company. These preference
shares are not participating in earnings and are entitled to a fixed dividend at the rate of 10 percent of the paid up value of
preference shares and maintain voting rights only on specific matters where the rights and responsibilities of the holders to that
company are concerned.

On 30 June 2005, the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders of Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Ltd. passed
a resolution approving a capital reduction of the total preference shares of Baht 1,200 million. The associated company had
already paid back to the shareholders in October 2005.

As approved by the Board of Directors Meeting held on 16 May 2005, the Company, along with overseas group
companies and a company registered in Canada, decided to establish a company in Canada, AV Nackawic Inc., which has
acquired assets of a bankrupt pulp mill, for manufacturing and selling of pulp. The Company has invested approximately Baht
70 million (CAD 2 million) in 10,000 ordinary shares of CAD 200 each to subscribe approximately 10 percent of shareholding in
this new company. The Company paid for the above investment in full in October 2005.
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As approved by the Board of Directors Meeting held on 15 August 2006, the Company, along with overseas group
companies decided to establish a company in the PRC, Birla Jingwei Fibre Co., Ltd., which is to expand the Company’s core
business in manufacturing of viscose staple fibre. Accordingly, on 17 October 2006, the Company has fully paid for the share
capital of RMB 71,955,000 or equivalent to approximately Baht 342 million to subscribe 19.50 percent of shareholding in this
new company.

On 15 August 2006, a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company also approved to purchase additional 9,000
shares of AV Nackawic Inc., Canada. Accordingly, on 31 October 2006, the Company has fully paid for the share capital of CAD
1.8 million (9,000 ordinary share of CAD 200 each) or equivalent to approximately Baht 59 million to the previous shareholder.
After the purchase, the Company’s interest in the share capital of that company has increased from 10 percent to 19 percent.

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Unit : Baht)
Buildings Machinery and Furniture,
and factory fixtures and Computer Motor Construction
Land improvement equipment  office equipment hardware vehicles in progress Total
Cost
As at 30 September 2005 24,824,658 320,647,320 1,729,828,995 49,384,514 - 26,674,196 60,796,415 2,212,156,098
Purchases/transfer in 25,200,667 41,891,359 124,143,033 1,213,671 14,103,344 3,239,870 662,171,486 871,963,430
Disposals/transfer out - - (8,545,472) (12,833,816) (1,122,500) (2,130,841) (166,034,392) (190,667,021)
As at 30 September 2006 50,025,325 362,638,679 1,845,426,556 37,764,369 12,980,844 27,783,225 556,933,509 2,893,452,507
Accumulated depreciation
As at 30 September 2005 - 219,257,618 1,573,035,950 46,003,904 - 19,242,650 - 1,857,5640,122
Depreciation for the year - 12,876,244 63,219,571 475,110 1,109,356 2,813,084 - 80,493,365
Transfer in/ (Transfer out) /
(Disposals) - - (8,543,472) (10,212,106) 9,091,150 (2,129,541) - (11,793,969)
As at 30 September 2006 - 232,133,862 1,627,712,049 36,266,908 10,200,506 19,926,193 - 1,926,239,518
Net book value
As at 30 September 2005 24,824,658 101,389,702 156,793,045 3,380,610 - 7,431,546 60,796,415 354,615,976
As at 30 September 2006 50,025,325 130,404,817 217,714,507 1,497,461 2,780,338 7,857,032 556,933,509 967,212,989
Depreciation charge
(included in statements of earnings for the years ended :)
30 September 2005 60,685,812
30 September 2006 80,493,365

—)fm s~ CTISAO IO
———

As at 30 September 2006, certain plant and equipment items are fully depreciated but still in use. The original cost, before
deducting accumulated depreciation, of these assets is approximately Baht 1,640 million (2005 : Baht 1,611 million).

12. SHARE CAPITAL
On 30 January 2006, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 13/2005 passed a resolution to approve the change
of the par value of the Company’s shares from Baht 10 per share to Baht 1 per share (through splitting 20,160,000 ordinary
shares into 201,600,000 ordinary shares). The Company registered the change of the par value of shares with the Ministry of
Commerce on 31 January 2006.

13. STATUTORY RESERVE
According to the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside a statutory reserve at
least 5% of its net profit after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any) until the reserve reaches 10% of the
registered share capital. The statutory reserve could not be used for dividend payment.

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration represents the benefits paid to the Company’s directors in accordance with Section 90 of the
Public Limited Companies Act, exclusive of salaries and related benefits payable to executive directors.
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15. CORPORATE INCOME TAX
Corporate income tax was calculated from net earnings for the year excluding the share of profit/loss of associated
companies, after adding back certain expenses which are non-deductible for tax computation purposes, after deducting the
dividend income which is exempted from income tax.

16. PROMOTIONAL PRIVILEGES

The Board of Investment has granted the Company promotional privileges under the Investment Promotion Act B.E. 2520,

in accordance with certificates no.1779(2)/2548 for the manufacture of textile products and components. Subject to certain

imposed conditions, the privileges include the followings :-

16.1 Exemption from import duty on machinery as approved by the Board.

16.2 Exemption from corporate income tax on tax profit from the promoted activities for a period of 3 years commencing
as from the date of first earning operating income.

16.3 Dividends paid from the profits of promoted operations which are exempted from corporate income tax, are in turn
exempted from inclusion in the determination of corporate income tax.

16.4 Exemption from import duty on imported raw and essential materials used for manufacturing for export for a period of
1 year commencing as from the first importation date.

16.5 Exemption from import duty on items which the promoted person imports for re-export for a period of 1 year
commencing as from the date of the first importation date.
As at 30 September 2006, the above promotional privileged project has been in the process of plant and machinery

construction.

17. DIVIDENDS
During 2006, the Company paid dividend, in respect of earnings for the year ended 30 September 2005, of Baht 12 per
share to the Company’s shareholders, or a total of approximately Baht 242 million. This dividend payment was approved by the
resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 13/2005 held on 30 January 2006.

During 2005, the Company paid dividend, in respect of earnings for the year ended 30 September 2004, of Baht 11 per
share to the Company’s shareholders, or a total of approximately Baht 222 million. This dividend payment was approved by the
resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 12/2004 held on 28 January 2005.

18. PROVIDENT FUND
The Company and its employees have jointly registered a provident fund scheme under Provident Fund Act. B.E. 2530.
The fund is contributed by both employees and the Company. The fund is managed by MFC Asset Management Public
Company Limited and will be paid to the employees upon termination in accordance with the rules of the Company’s staff
provident fund. During the year ended 30 September 2006, amount of approximately Baht 8.3 million (2005 : Baht 7.9 million)
was contributed to the fund by the Company.

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial risk management and policies
The Company is exposed to risks from changes in market interest rates and in currency exchange rates in the normal course of
business. The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments either for speculative or trading purposes.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the Company’s operations
and its cash flows. The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk primarily relates to deposits at financial institutions and bank
overdrafts. Since these financial assets and liabilities carry interest at the rates following the market interest rates, the
management believes that the future movements in market interest rates will not significantly affect the results of the operations.

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily relates to cash at banks, receivables and payables which are
denominated in foreign currency. In addition, the Company is exposed to the effect of foreign exchange movements on its
investments in foreign associated and related companies.

Below is a summary of foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities as at 30 September 2006 which were

unhedged.
Assets Liabilities Average exchange rate as at 30 September 2006
Foreign currency (Million) (Million) (Baht per unit of foreign currency)
usD 31.4 0.3 37.5416
IDR 78,596.1 - 4.0790 (per 1,000 IDR)
CAD 9.3 - 33.7590
LE 34.3 - 6.6157
73




As at 30 September 2006, the Company had outstanding forward exchange contracts of which details are presented below.

Amount (Million) Maturity date Exchange rate
Buy
UsD 3.3 11 October 2006 37.30-37.56
Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivable in the normal course of business. Since
majority of its sales are supplied to creditworthy customers, the Company does not anticipate any losses from its debt collection.

Fair value
Since the majority of the financial assets and liabilities are short-term, the Company believes that the fair value of these
financial assets and liabilities does not materially differ from their carrying value.

20. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT
The Company’s operations involve a single industry segment in the manufacture and distribution of viscose rayon staple fiber
and related by-products for both domestic and export markets. For the year ended 30 September 2006, export sales
represented approximately 47 percent (2005 : 50 percent) of total sales. The Company’s operations are carried on in a single
geographic area in Thailand. As a result, all of the revenues, earnings and assets as reflected in these financial statements
pertain to the aforementioned business segment and geographic area.

21. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 September 2006, commitments and contingent liabilities of the Company are as follows:

21.1 The Company has two lease agreements to rent office space for the periods of 20 years and 18 years and 8 months, both
of which expired on 31 December 2004. In March 2003, the Company entered into a new lease agreement for the same
office space, effective from 1 January 2005 and expiring in December 2014. The prepaid rental expenses covering the
whole period totaling Baht 5.0 million will be amortised over the period of new lease.

21.2 The Company entered into a royalty agreement with an overseas company in 1987 under which the Company is provided
with technical assistance services and is obliged to pay a service fee, calculated at a percentage of sales, in accordance
with the basis and conditions stipulated in the agreement, to that company.

21.3 The Company had commitments for purchase of land, machinery and supplies of approximately Baht 261.3 million
(2005 : Baht 41.6 million).

22. BANK GUARANTEES
As at 30 September 2006, there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately Baht 17 million (2005 : Baht 17 million)
issued by banks on behalf of the Company in respect of certain performance bonds as required in the ordinary course of
business of the Company.

23. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On 11 October 2006, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued the Notification No. 26/2006 regarding Accounting
Standard No. 44 “Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting for Investments in Subsidiaries” (Amendment No. 1),
under which investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are to be presented in the separate financial
statements under the cost method rather than the equity method. Entities which are not ready to adopt the cost method in 2006
can continue to use the equity method through the end of 2006 and adopt the cost method as from 1 January 2007.

The above-mentioned notification was announced in the Royal Gazette and became effective on 30 October 2006.

24. RECLASSIFICATION
Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2005 have been reclassified to conform to the
current year's classifications, with no effect on previously reported net earnings or shareholders’ equity.

25. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s authorised directors on 21 November 2006.
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Corporate Profile

1. Company Details

Pratumwan, Bangkok 10330 Tel. 0-2253-6745 Fax. 0-2254-3181

Company Name . Thai Rayon Public Company Limited
Company Registration No. : 0107536001125
Location of Head Office : 888/160-1 Mahatun Plaza Building, 16" Floor, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini,

Location of Factory : 36 Moo 2, Ayuthaya-Angthong Highway, Tambol Posa, Amphur Muang, Angthong 14000
Tel. 0-3561-1227-30 Fax. 0-3561-1908

Type of Business : Manufacturer of Viscose Rayon Staple Fibre

Websites : www.thairayon.com; www.birlavsf.com; www.adityabirla.com

2. Share Capital and Major Shareholders

Registered share capital :201,600,000.00 Baht
Issued & paid-up share capital . 201,600,000.00 Baht
Major Shareholders (Source: Share Registrar as on September 30, 2006)

No. Name of Shareholders Nationality Type of Business No. of Shares %
1 |Asseau Company Limited British Virgin Island | Investment company 33,582,850 | 16.66
2 |Wholton Company Limited British Virgin Island | Investment company 22,165,700 | 10.99
3 |Hart Global Limited British Virgin Island | Investment company 21,600,000 | 10.71
4 |Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. for Depositor Thai Security Custodian 17,941,900 8.90
5 |Grasim Industries Limited Indian Rayon Manufacturer 13,988,570 6.94
6 |Thai Industrial Management & Trading Co., Ltd. Thai Investment company 9,738,500 4.83
7 |Rama Trading Co.,Ltd. Thai Investment company 6,180,680 3.07
8 |Ms. Vanida Thakral Thai Personal Business 5,892,040 2.92
9 |Mrs. Rachani Kajiji Thai Personal Business 4,671,690 2.32
10 |Mr. Amorn Panichkiwulkosil Thai Personal Business 3,640,740 1.81

Dividend Policy

According to the cash profit generated after considering appropriately the requirement of fund for business and investments.

3. Other References

Tel : 0-2359-1200-1 Fax : 0-2359-1259

Share Registrar : Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited
62 Ratchadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110

Ernst & Young Office Limited

Tel : 0-2264-0777 Fax : 0-2661-9192

Auditor : Mr. Narong Puntawong, CPA (Thailand) Registation No. 3315
Mr. Supachai Phanyawattano, CPA (Thailand) Registration No. 3930
Ms. Siraporn Quaanunkun, CPA (Thailand) Registration No. 3844

33" Floor, Lake Rajada Office Complex, 193/136-137 Rajadapisek Road,Bangkok 10110
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SAIBLAINEONUWUSHNSIAWTSILNDAUAULODUSIN
Board of Directors and Management Team

TR-AnA / AUNU

Name & Position

21g (1)
Age (years)

=
QAINNMSANEN

Education

szaumsni / Experience

ALY / Position

U5HN / Company

1. Welszans aAgung 84 B.Com - Birmingham University, fulnmeAniznssuns | sunanslnewadiae s1in (NUU1)
- dszanunssunng England gaaagdinig swiAsutaszmelng
Mr. Prachitr Yossundara B.Com - Birmingham University,| Advisor to the Board Siam Commercial Bank
- Director & Chairman of England Asst. to the Governor Bank of Thailand
the Board
2. WeNuNg $aN1AN wedan 39 F.CA, M.B.A., (Institute of N3sUNI3 131 dulalneGumaad anin
- N9IUNNT Chartered Accountants of India/ | N99uN19 151 TneanFUauLUaa a7fn (N9NT)
London Business School) n394N19 151 Ineensan TWwas a1
nasuNNg 13 Inalesdanlas anin
NITUNNT 13 Inenaneama uaziadined aan
NITUNNT 131 aanen wefan iniAad (Uszmndlng) anin
Mr. K.M. Birla F.C.A, M.B.A,, Director Indo-Thai Synthetics Co.,Ltd.
- Director (Institute of Chartered Director Thai Carbon Black Public Co., Ltd.
Accountants of India / London Director Thai Acrylic Fibre Co., Ltd.
Business School) Director Thai Peroxide Co., Ltd.
Director Thai Polyphosphate & Chemicals Co., Ltd
Director Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Ltd.
3. WNIMNET LUafan 61 Bachelor of Arts N99NNNT 13 aulalnedumsad anfin
- N9IUNNT (Chennai University, India) n374N"N9 139 IneArFuauuuaa A1dA (NUN1Lw)
NITUNNT 131w Inearian Trlwes anrn
n791N"9 13 Inenlestanlds anrn
n791N"9 1 IneInanean uaziadined avn
n3304N"19 134 afmen Wwasan wilsad (Uszmnelng) andn
Mrs. Rajashree Birla Bachelor of Arts Director Indo-Thai Synthetics Co.,Ltd.
- Director (Chennai University, India) Director Thai Carbon Black Public Co., Ltd.
Director Thai Acrylic Fibre Co., Ltd.
Director Thai Peroxide Co., Ltd.
Director Thai Polyphosphate & Chemicals Co., Ltd
Director Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Ltd.
4. wgilsan wesan 35 Commerce (College in India) n77UNNT 139 ulalne@wmiad andn
- N9IUNNT N99NNNg 13 aanen wefan inilAad (Uszmdlng) anin
Mrs. Neerja Birla Commerce (College in India) Director Indo-Thai Synthetics Co., Ltd.
- Director Director Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Ltd.
5. wieladn quinef 71 B.Com., F.C.A. n994N19 151 neanfuaukuda anda (N9n)
g (Institute of Chartered ArrrUaen) 1390 Inedesfenlas adn
- NITUNTBATE Accountants of India) NITUNNT 131w Tnearian Trlwes arn
- dszaunssunng n9IUNIT 15w aulalne@umiad A
A29AEAL n791N"9 1 IneInaneawn uaziadined ann
Mr. S.S. Mahansaria B.Com., F.C.A. Director Thai Carbon Black Public Co., Ltd.
- Independent Director (Institute of Chartered Director Thai Peroxide Co., Ltd.
- Chairman of Audit Accountants of India) Director Thai Acrylic Fibre Co., Ltd.
Committee Director Indo-Thai Synthetics Co., Ltd.
Director Thai Polyphosphate & Chemicals Co., Ltd
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Bombay-India

S.M. (M.L.T.) U.S.A.

Head Commissioner
Director
Director
Director
Director

Director

%a—ﬁqa [ AU ang (1) QANWMSANEN 1lszdgumani / Experience
Name & Position Age (years) Education AW / Position 1549 / Company
6. Wetle dainn 71 Senior Cambridge RECEIaE) 131 dulalnadumiad adn
- NIIUNNIBATE AUTNUANG AT Director
- NTTNNITATIREDL Certification Program
(DCP #21/2002), IOD
Mr. Vinai Sachdev Senior Cambridge Director Indo-Thai Synthetics Co., Ltd.
- Independent Director Director Certification Program
- Audit Committee Member (DCP #21/2002), 10D
7. wealudn 9insa 46 High School aLsNuaNgns n9INN1T 131 10.A. gLﬁﬂu Suhf
-NITUNNT Director Accreditation Program REE-Ualty U3 7ingna anim
(DAP), 10D n994N19 136 7158101 W20R SR
Mr. Amolat Thakral High School Director A.G. Union Ltd
- Director Director Accreditation Director Thakral Co.,Ltd.
Program (DAP), IOD Director T. Rayon Trading Co.,Ltd.
8. Wil AnAd 65 Business Administration N3TUNN9EARNIS 1319 193181 AR
- N9INNIT (York College, Nebraska, N3IUNN9EARNIS 131 Tasg (Uszndlne) andm
USA) NIFNNNIEaRANIT L3EN NPMNIEUILLTA nfinmie i
BUINUANE AT Director NIFNNNIEAANIT 131 unaaulsindavia a1in
Certification Program N77UNN9 yaiBlanis
(DCP #21/2002), IOD
Mrs. Rachani Kajiji Business Administration (York | Managing Director Thevaraya Company
- Director College, Nebraska, U.S.A.) Managing Director Kores Thailand Limited
Director Certification Program | Managing Director Krungthep general Marketing Co.,Ltd.
(DCP #21/2002), 10D Managing Director Banglaine Farming Company
Director Maskati Foundation
9. WENIAUA 379 65 Advanced Accountancy, n29:N17 131 Tnamsueuluan anfm (Nr1Tw)
- N9IINNIIBATY Economics & Law (University of
- NITUNTTATIAEDU Bombay & European University)
Mr. Ramakant Rathi Advanced Accountancy, Director Thai Carbon Black Public Co., Ltd.
- Independent Director Economics & Law (University of
- Audit Committee Member Bombay & European University)
10. wielaiauns NuIg 1Ay 63 B.Sc.-Vikram University, India NIFNNNIEIRANIT 131 N3Giu Busamsd anrin
- NIIUNNT B.E. (Hons)-University of Wantigania qiﬁmﬁ@m:mmmnﬁu‘lﬂ NAUYAAIUNITHILIBTAN
Bombay, India n93UA"T A Buln U5 iseew, Ussmadulnilide
S.M. (M.I.T.) U.SA. n374N"N9 151 107 wad 89f, UITmAnAuIaI
n37:N17 135 187 LuAATIA B9F, LszmAuALAn
NITUNNT U3 1wefan Aaad IWlwas andn, Usznaau
n99UNIT L3t 1wedan a1n Wan weus unaumdu sniia,
szinAang
n3394N19 Jailwiues uous aud (geawe) B,
azimnAauigalisng
Mr. Shailendra Kumar Jain B.Sc.— Vikram University - India President Grasim Industries Ltd., Birlagram, Nagda
- Director B.E. (Hons) University of Business Pulp & Fibre Business of Aditya Birla Group

PT Indo Bharat Rayon, Indonesia

AV Cell Inc., Canada

AV Nackawic Inc., Canada

Birla Jingwei Fibers Co., Ltd., China ROP

Birla Lao Pulp & Plantations Co., Ltd., Lao PDR
Multifibre & Yarns (USA) Inc., USA
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Name & Position

21g (@)
Age (years)
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Education
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1. weyiunias unane 57 B.Com., n9INNNT U3 197 1144 896, szmnAuaunan
- N9TNNNT (University of Rajasthan) ngsuNIg 151 187 WUAATIA B49A, UssinALAUIAN
- 1szaNuL31n F.C.A. (Institute of Chartered n77UN"3 139 wasan A Iniues anin, Uszmaau
Accountants of India) n99NNIg L3t (wefan a1n Wanl weus unauindu
BUINWANEAT Director {1in, Yszmeana
Certification Program (DCP n9TUNIT JanlWwes uous aud (yeate) B,
#34/2003), 10D UszimAanigewmsng
Mr. P.M. Bajaj B.Com. Director AV Cell Inc. — Canada
- President & Director (University of Rajasthan) Director AV Nackawic Inc. — Canada
F.C.A. (Institute of Chartered Director Birla Jingwei Fibers Co., Ltd., China ROP
Accountants of India) Director Birla Lao Pulp & Plantations Co., Ltd.,
Director Certification Program Lao PDR
(DCP #34/2003), 10D Director Multifiore & Yarns (USA) Inc., USA
12. wenag nyf 57 B.E. (Chem), AMIE (Mech.) AANTNLNAR 139 nadnausassad anin Uszimneduis
- saatlszauengla (1.1.T. Delhi)
Mr. Vijesh Kapoor B.E. (Chem), AMIE (Mech.) | Process Engineer Grasim Industries Co., Ltd., India
- Senior Vice President (1.1.T. Delhi)
13. WIUUIUATY NHNT LAY 56 B.E. (Chem.),M.E. (Inds. Prod.) | Wautiuuun-Spg U3 naGuduiassed anin Uszmeduie
- sastryau dnansuan (Govt. College of Engg. & Tech | & Aft
Raipur, M.P., B.I.T.S., Pilani)
Mr. N.K. Jain B.E. (Chem.),M.E. (Inds. Prod.) | Superintendent - Grasim Industries Co.,Ltd., India
- Vice President, Production (Govt. College of Engg. & Tech | Spg.&Aft
Raipur, M.P., B.I.T.S., Pilani)
14, Wgmwag NNU1AU 43 B.E. (Mech.), g minany 139 nadNBusamsad a1in UszinAduiRe
- 9astlseanu dhewngiamel M.B.A. (India Institute of Nps
Management, Birla Institute of
Tech. & Science
Mr. Sanjay Mahajan B.E. (Mech.), Officer on Special Grasim Industries Co.,Ltd., India
- Vice President, M.B.A. (India Institute of Duty to President
Commercial Management, Birla Institute of
Tech. & Science
15. Wregiag NHng e 41 B.Tech. (Textiles) é”ﬁ'ﬂmiﬁmﬂ PT. Polysindo Eka Perkasa, Indonesia
- 9a4U9e87U Hnengmanm M.B.A. (Marketing & Finance), dneigeaan
T.LT., LM.S.
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Verma B.Tech. (Textiles) General Manager PT. Polysindo Eka Perkasa, Indonesia
- Vice President, Marketing M.B.A. (Marketing & Finance), (Export)
T.LT., LM.S.
16. wigmvAn nu1g PRAA 49 B.E. (Mech.), S.G.S.I.TS. Indore | Afan3 131 nadnausassad anin Uszineduis

- faneseatlszann
HneidFanssy

Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Kaul

- Asst. Vice President,

Engineering

B.E. (Mech.), S.G.S.I.TS. Indore

Sectional Engineer

Grasim Industries Co.,Ltd., India
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17 wiesn Indha an1aia 51 B.E. (Chem.), M.Tech. Arang 139 nITNBUREFIed arim
- fnusasiran (LL.T. Kanpur, India) Uszineduie
AR Az
18. WILLAT AN LAY 42 B.Com., F.CA, F.C.S. (Institute | gfaniseheiinyduay | 151 dwidnsaau wausd audassad ain
- fnusestsranu of Chartered Accountants of n19Y UsznAduie
gnawnoine India) (Institute of Company

Secretaries of India)

19. WwigtlsnTuned AmunAa 52 Boyonss FgAansiiounn ﬁg”ﬁm?ﬁﬂﬂ 139 P TAAR (Uszimnelng) anfim
- tfﬁmmavﬁ»lﬂ Useyaynin SqulszAnaumans
dhaminensnyetuay
N1e1Lisvng
20. wnes m Sdall 41 Us.4. (N34anIs & 1oyd)
- IYNNT U1, (NN971)

AUTNUANGAT Company Secretary
Program CSP 2/2002, IOD
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THAI RAYONM
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Birla Cellulose

Flk ar Fram Hatu-a

uSdn Inetseu 9dA (UMBU)
yzifiawaan : 0107536001125

dineulvg) : 888/160-1 1A THMINUNAIT) i 16 nuwwauda W2QUNEL LUAUNHTU N9MWY 10330
Insfwn : 0-2253-6745-54 Insans : 0-2254-3181

Tso0u i 36 vy 2 ouuagsen - dnacland dualwaz Suneiiias Awindremas 14000
Tnséws : 0-3561-1227-30 Invans : 0-3561-1908

Thai Rayon Public Company Limited
Registration No. : 0107536001125

Head Office : 888/160-1 Mahatun Plaza Building, 16th Floor, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330
Tel. : 0-2253-6745-54 Fax : 0-2254-3181

Factory : 36 Moo 2 Ayuthaya - Angthong Highway, Tambol Posa, Amphur Muang, Angthong Province 14000
Tel. : 0-3561-1227-30 Fax : 0-3561-1908

Website 1 http://www.thairayon.com, http://www.birlaviscose.com
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